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The Spastic Centre gratefully acknowledges the support of all those who 

donated in many ways – from the smallest coin to the largest cheque.  

We appreciate the support we receive and extend our heartfelt thanks 

to all our many donors and sponsors.

Listed on our website ... www.thespasticcentre.com.au/sponsors ...
are those who donated and sponsored The Spastic Centre throughout 2006-2007.

(Mission Statement)
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president’s
report

On behalf of the Board of Directors of The Spastic Centre
of New South Wales and its subsidiary companies, it is 
my pleasure to present the Annual Report and to highlight
the activities of the organisation for the financial year
2006-2007.   

The implementation of many new initiatives, considerable
growth and further consolidation of The Spastic Centre's
overall sound financial position have been key features of
a very busy and exciting year.

The momentum created throughout 2006-2007 will be
carried forward into The Centre's Strategic Plan for 2007-
2010, which was approved by the Board in June 2007.
In a climate of expected increases in demand and an ever-
growing emphasis on community-building and social
connection, our major goal during the next three years will
be to ensure that our service set and service models
remain contemporary and creative.  

Secondly, we have set ourselves the task of maintaining
The Spastic Centre's strong and influential position within
the community and disability sector. 

Our desire to support research into cure and prevention of
cerebral palsy is reflected in our Plan's third goal and aims
to position The Spastic Centre as a leading player in
global efforts to find answers to some of the most complex
questions around cerebral palsy. 

Full details of the 2007-2010 Strategic Plan, and other
information which you will find both useful and
informative, are available by accessing The Spastic
Centre's website at

http://www.thespasticcentre.org.au/services/

about_tsc/strategicplans/index.htm

The Centre's financial performance was again very solid,
recording an operating surplus of $9.4 million ($1.1
million:2005-2006).  This result was due largely to a most
generous bequest of approximately $2.8 million from the
estate of the late Thomas Morgan, the receipt of
approximately $3.3 million from the sale of underutilised
land adjoining the Stuart Centre at Croudace Bay and a
healthy return on our portfolio of managed investments.
As well, it is pleasing to report the recovery of a
$700,000 debt incurred in the financial year 2005-2006
and owed to The Centre from a company in liquidation.  

Under the guidance and stewardship of the Finance and
Audit Committee chaired by Vice-President, Mark Bryant,
and in addition to the approved budget for 2007-2008,
the Board resolved that a $1 million package from this
surplus be applied directly to support a number of new
initiatives identified in our 2007-2010 Strategic Plan.
Such initiatives will include demonstration pilots in the
areas of respite, recreation, sports and leisure and the
ever-expanding virtual media formats.  This package of
money will allow us to explore new service models and
place us in an influential position for the adoption of such
practices by government and other service providers. 

In addition it should be noted that a substantial portion of
the surplus funds was allocated to The Spastic Centre
Program Investment Fund. Interest and dividends from the
Fund will be applied to our annual recurrent operating
budget.

During the year, a major decision was made by the Board
to approve in principle, a significant upgrade at Allambie
Heights with the establishment of a new Cerebral Palsy
Centre.  This decision was taken as a consequence of
having secured a 90 year Lease, generously provided by
the NSW Department of Lands to The Spastic Centre in
respect of its tenure at Allambie Heights.  
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Marelle Thornton, AM – 
President of the Spastic Centre and 
Chairman of the Board of Directors



The need for a major facility upgrade was illuminated in
The Centre's strategic planning process which identified
that existing buildings and facilities at Allambie Heights,
initially constructed in 1957, now incur very high
maintenance costs and to a large extent, limit the
programs and services we can offer to our clients.   The
proposed redevelopment will be a natural extension of the
ongoing rejuvenation of our organisation's facilities and
will ensure that The Centre continues to provide well
developed care and support services into the future.  

A planned second stage of the proposed Allambie Heights
redevelopment will consist of eco-designed independent
living units for the aged and people with disabilities, and
a new Community Centre to be shared by both The Centre
and the residents.

This year also saw the launch of the truly inspirational story
of The Spastic Centre's founders.  All members are
encouraged to obtain the online version of Neil McLeod's
account of the first forty years of the growth and
development of The Centre, entitled “Nothing is
Impossible”. The online version is available for members at 

http://www.thespasticcentre.org.au/services/
about_tsc/history/Nothing-is-impossible/index.htm

As always, many special people deserve The Spastic
Centre's heartfelt gratitude and public acknowledgement.  

Thank you to our Goodwill Ambassador, The Hon John
Dowd AO QC, and our Patron in the Australian Capital
Territory, The Hon Margaret Reid AO for continuing to
provide invaluable support to the cause of children and
adults with cerebral palsy and their families in NSW and
ACT.  We are extremely appreciative of their time, energy
and encouragement.  

Thank you to the Chairman of The Cerebral Palsy
Foundation Bill Bartlett and the Governors of The
Foundation.  Their drive, enthusiasm and outreach have
been outstanding and are pivotal to the achievement of
The Foundation's targets and goals. 

Thank you to our individual and corporate supporters
whose generosity and practical assistance serve to
enhance much of the work of The Centre which is essential
to our clients and families. 

The giving and loyalty of our extraordinary donors,
sponsors, benefactors, volunteers and supporters are
amazing, and each year their vital contribution to our
endeavours exceeds our every expectation. 

Thank you also to our State and Federal government
funding providers and service partners, notably, the
Australian Federal Government's Department of Families,
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Community Services and Indigenous Affairs, Department
of Employment and Workplace Relations and Department
of Education, Science and Training and the NSW State
Government's Department of Ageing, Disability and Home
Care, Department of Health and Department of Education
and Training.

In particular, The Centre extends special appreciation to
the Premier of NSW, The Hon Morris Iemma and his
respective Ministers and Directors-General for the
opportunity to work collaboratively in planning and
implementing services across the State for the betterment
of people with cerebral palsy and their families.

Congratulations and sincere thanks go to our Chief
Executive Officer, Rob White and his hard working,
talented management team and their staff.  Rob's skill,
buoyancy, optimism and drive distinguish him among his
peers, and his strong leadership continues to motivate and
inspire others in building an organisation of dimension
and influence.  

Finally, I salute my esteemed colleagues on the Board of
Directors.  Their passion, skills and total commitment to the
effective governance of a complex organisation like The
Spastic Centre, are second to none.  

Marelle Thornton AM
President



NEW SERVICES FOR CLIENTS

■ The Mittiga Centre, Kingswood was completed with a
capital grant from the Department of Education, Science and
Training. The project was also generously supported by The
Italian Affair Committee and the University of Western Sydney.
The Mittiga Centre will allow for a greater range of services
offered to children and families in the Nepean and Lower Blue
Mountains regions.

■ Kristina Keneally, MP, Minister for Ageing, Minister for
Disability Services increased our Twenty/20 equipment fund
for children with a $200,000 contribution. 

■ The Spastic Centre was successful in securing funds through
the Department of Ageing, Disability and Home Care
(DADHC) Stronger Together program. As a result, 10 new
therapists were recruited to work across our Sydney
metropolitan, rural and regional services. This funding will
allow us to support over 300 additional children and adults.

■ The Department of Families, Community Services &
Indigenous Affairs funding helped expand our support group
network for families in the My Time program. Groups
commenced in Orange, Nowra, Moruya, Lake Macquarie
and Muswellbrook. 

■ Recurrent DADHC funding was used to establish a centre-
based respite service for children and young people on the
Northern Beaches. The service will offer 31 places, operate
on weekends, and provide holiday programs.

■ One-off DADHC funding was received to roll out a state-
wide strategy for early childhood intervention over the next
18-24 months. This will reach over 900 families with children
who have CP, aged 6 years and under.

■ The Department of Families, Community Services &
Indigenous Affairs assisted Business Services to implement
strategies to increase sales and improve profitability. Our
Business Services support 163 employees with disabilities.

■ Intensive Family Support Services were established in 
South West Sydney to support Culturally and Linguistically
Diverse families; in the Hunter region; on the Central Coast; in
South East Sydney, and in South West Sydney in partnership
with Burnside.

■ Making Links began in the South and West Sydney region
focusing on the Vietnamese and Arabic communities. The
Making Links project partners The Spastic Centre and Multi-
Cultural Disability Advocacy Association. The project
develops relationships with Culturally and Linguistically
Diverse Communities to influence attitudes and beliefs about
disability within specific cultural groups. 

■ A partnership was developed with the NSW Oral Health
Service to ensure effective and accessible dental health
services for people with disabilities. Several clinics were held,
and an agreement reached with Mona Vale Hospital for the
use of their theatre for dental treatments.

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

■ Our partnership with Macquarie Bank resulted in tangible
benefits for many children through the provision of equipment.
Our annual Twenty/20 Challenge raised over $250,000.
This was generously matched by the Macquarie Bank
Foundation resulting in a total of $500,000. Our sincere
thanks go to the Macquarie Bank Foundation, and to bank
staff for significant personal contributions. 

■ The Prime Minister’s Award for a community-business
partnership recognised our long-standing and highly
successful partnership with ING. The ING Centre for
Conductive Education has been the cornerstone of the
partnership. Activities have now broadened to include The
ING Ignition Youth Mentoring program, staff volunteering for
facilities maintenance and pro bono financial planning advice
for families. 

■ Perpetual generously donated $50,000 to continue the
FamilyCare program and extend the program into rural NSW.
The program supports parents with future planning for their
son or daughter with a disability. 

■ KPMG funding supported employment forums for young
people in rural areas. 

■ Aristocrat generously donated $50,000 for the
development of children’s sporting programs.

■ The Commonwealth Bank’s grant of $10,000 established
the Tweenys’ Tuck Shop pilot in the Central West of NSW,
focusing on nutrition and healthy eating for children.

■ The generosity of Trust Company provided 106 beautiful
flags flying prominently in the CBD for CP Awareness Week.
Trust also supported the launch of CP Awareness Week at the
Museum of Contemporary Art and our Perspectives in Print
Exhibition, Taronga Park Zoo. 

■ The 2006 Christmas Carnival was generously supported by
ING, Macquarie Bank, KPMG, John Ferrarin from WT
Partnership, Hasbro Aust Ltd and many other local businesses.
Over 400 children, parents, grandparents and staff enjoyed a
fabulous fun day at the North East Children’s Services Ryde site. 
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■ It was a record year for fundraising with outstanding results
achieved by the CBD Golf Escape! sponsored by Sydney City
Toyota, Might and Power Gala Race Day, Italian Affair
Committee and the Col Crawford Golf Day. 

■ The Kick a Goal for Kids fundraising campaign which
featured seven year old Alex Graham and sports journalist
Peter FitzSimons was an outstanding success, raising over
$354,000. 

■ Lend a Helping Hand Volunteer Program celebrated its 
5th anniversary. There are now over 1,000 volunteers on 
our database, providing 23,000 hours of service throughout
the year. 

■ KPMG volunteers generously hosted a picnic day with a
‘Wild West’ theme for families in South West Sydney. 

■ Our partnership with ClubsACT has supported children's
services in the ACT for over six years, with an annual
sponsorship of $120,000. This provides equipment, therapy
services and programs to families of children with cerebral
palsy and associated conditions. The partnership will be
renewed in 2007 for another three years. 

■ Just Like You!, our Disability Awareness program for primary
school students, continues to expand with the support of a
dedicated team of volunteers. A total of 640 students have
now participated in the program.

■ The Unlock Your Creativity program for adults took dramatic
expression to a new level at the St Ives and Lifestyles
Community Access Services (CAS). This project received
funding from the Sydney City Council and Arts Council of
NSW, and was promoted on the ABC 7.30 Report.

■ The generosity of Sandy Parsonage AM, Rob Parsonage
and the Grevillea Group refurbished the Castle Hill and
Chester Hill respite services. 

■ Access to services for families in South Eastern Sydney was
improved with the completion of stage one of the development
at the Penshurst site. 

■ Dubbo’s beautiful premises were completed through the
generosity of Sargents Charity Foundation, and will enhance
our services to children and families living in the Orana and
Far West region of NSW. 

■ Our Stuart Centre, Hunter region was significantly
upgraded from the proceeds of the site’s land sale. 

■ Manly Community Access Service (CAS) clients continued to
excel in the field of Boccia, holding five national titles.

CP INSTITUTE AND CP FOUNDATION

■ The CP Institute in NSW expanded its activities with the
launch of the Australian CP Register by Professor Fiona
Stanley AC. The Australian CP Register is now the largest
research database in the world and the CP Institute has been
appointed the national leader of this initiative.

■ CP Institute staff were invited to speak at 19 national and
international conferences. 

■ The Research and Ethics Committees approved a total of 21
research projects in the spheres of intervention and prevention
research. 

■ The CP Foundation and the National Health and Medical
Research Council (NHMRC) formed a partnership to co-fund
researchers in the field of cerebral palsy. This partnership
effectively doubles the number of researcher grants offered,
which will double the impact of our contributions.

■ The CP Institute awarded $230,000 in CP Foundation
grants plus an additional $55,000 in scholarships co-funded
with NHMRC in the first year of the Research Grants Program.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

■ The Macquarie University VOICE project results identified
The Spastic Centre in the top 5% of Australian organisations
for employee job satisfaction.

■ The Spastic Centre received the following awards and
citations in acknowledgement for its achievement in HR:

■ National Finalist in the IPAC HR Champion CEO Award
Category – recognising the CEO for his contribution to 
HR management and successfully driving HR strategy.

■ State Winner and National Finalist in the AHRI People
Management Medium Enterprise and/or NFP Sector
Category – recognising The Spastic Centre’s people
management initiatives and implementation processes
which delivered outstanding outcomes at both an
organisational and employee level.

■ Commended citation in the EOWA Annual Business
Achievement Award for Outstanding Initiative/Result for
the Advancement of Women Category – recognising 
The Spastic Centre’s initiative in partnering with Australian
Volunteers International to offer professional development
opportunities through its overseas programs.

■ Citation as EOWA Employer of Choice for 2007 – one 
of only 152 organisations across Australia to receive 
this citation.
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The Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who held a position at any
time during or since the end of the financial year are:

CAIN BECKETT, BEC, MINTS, GAICD
Mr Beckett has been a member of the Board of Directors
since November 2003.

Mr Beckett is the Chairman of the Research Committee and
the Ethics Committee. He is also a member of the Finance
and Audit Committee, the Property and Equipment
Committee, the Human Resources Committee and the
Services Committee.

Mr Beckett is currently employed as the Senior Manager
responsible for Strategy & Project Delivery with Perpetual
Corporate Trust and for over ten years prior to this was a
successful management and technology consultant.

Mr Beckett represents Australia in Archery and is the 
No. 1 Australian on the current Men’s Paralympic Archery
World Ranking.

NEROLI BEST, MBBS, FANZCA, MAICD
Dr Best has been a member of the Board of Directors since
June 1994. 

Dr Best is a member of the Services Committee, the
Research Committee and the Ethics Committee. 

Dr Best is a medical practitioner specialising in
anaesthesiology and holds appointments at Royal North
Shore, Mater Misericordiae and North Shore Private
Hospitals.

MARK BRYANT, MA, FCA, MAICD
Mr Bryant has been a member of the Board of Directors
since December 1997. 

Mr Bryant is Vice-President of The Spastic Centre,
Chairman of the Finance and Audit Committee and a
member of the Fundraising Committee and the Property
and Equipment Committee. 

Mr Bryant has 30 years experience in public accounting.

ROBERT (BOB) G. MILLER
Mr Miller has been a member of the Board of Directors
since May 1999.

Mr Miller is a member of the Fundraising Committee, the
Finance and Audit Committee and the Property and
Equipment Committee. 

Mr Miller is presently the Principal of Australia Street
Consulting Pty Ltd where he advises the automotive
industry, advertising agencies, telecommunications
companies and others on Marketing. He was previously
General Manager – Marketing, Toyota Australia for fifteen
years.

Mr Miller teaches postgraduate students in Macquarie
University’s Economics and Finance Division.

JOHN MORGAN
Mr Morgan has been a member of the Board of Directors
since November 1991. 

Mr Morgan is a member of the Services Committee. 

Mr Morgan has been employed at The Spastic Centre for
the past 45 years. He is an adviser to the Warringah
Council Access Committee.

Mr Morgan has served on management committees of
outside organisations, including the Disability & Ageing
Reference Group and the Physical Disability Council of
NSW. Mr Morgan has a keen interest in the area of
ageing and its impact on people with a disability

VICTOR NOSSAR, MB, BS (UNSW), FRACP, FAFPHM
Associate Professor Nossar has been a member of the
Board of Directors since June 2006.

Associate Professor Nossar is the Associate Dean of the
School of Medicine at The University of Notre Dame
Australia. As a community paediatrician, he has more
than 20 years experience in implementing community-
based services to enhance the health and development of
children and young people, in Australia and overseas. 
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The Directors present their report together with the financial report of The Spastic Centre of

New South Wales (“the Company”) and the consolidated financial report of the consolidated

entity, being the Company and its controlled entities, for the year ended 30 June 2007 and

the auditor’s report thereon.



Associate Professor Nossar was previously a member of
the Board from December 1995 until his relocation to
South Australia in December 2002.

MARELLE THORNTON, AM, DIP TEACH, MAICD
Mrs Thornton has been a member of the Board of Directors
since October 1983. 

Mrs Thornton is President of The Spastic Centre, Chairman
of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Fundraising
Committee and a member of the Finance and Audit
Committee, the Property and Equipment Committee, the
Human Resources Committee and the Services Committee.

Mrs Thornton is a primary school teacher.

ROBIN WAY, M MGT, PHD
Dr Way has been a member of the Board of Directors
since November 1995. 

Dr Way is Chairman of the Services Committee and a
member of the Human Resources Committee. She is the
Board’s representative on CP Australia, a peak body for
organisations in Australia providing services to people
with cerebral palsy.

Dr Way is CEO of Community Connections Australia – a
non-government organisation providing a range of in
home support services to maintain people in their homes
wherever possible. She has worked extensively within the
disability arena and is a member of the NSW State
Committee of National Disability Services (NDS) and
Chair of the Centre for Australian Management and
Organisations (CACOM) at UTS.

PETER WHITFIELD, BSC, MAICD
Mr Whitfield has been a member of the Board of Directors
since November 1997.

Mr Whitfield is the Chairman of the Property and
Equipment Committee, and a member of the Finance and
Audit Committee, the Fundraising Committee and the
Human Resources Committee. 
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Mr Whitfield initiated the introduction of the Hart Walker
to Australia and was instrumental in promoting the Hart
Walker program at The Spastic Centre.

Mr Whitfield holds a degree in Maths and Physics and
spent eight years as a money-market trader. 

Eleven years ago Mr Whitfield left the finance industry to
pursue his own business interests. He currently owns a
publishing company of quality children’s books.

BRIAN WILLIAMSON, DIP LAW (SAB), 
M. COM (DEAKIN), 
Accredited Specialist in Employment & Industrial Law 
(Law Soc of NSW), MAICD
Mr Williamson joined the Board in December 2002.

Mr Williamson is the Chairman of the Human Resources
Committee and is the Board representative on the
Enterprise Risk Management Committee. 

Mr Williamson is the founder and co-owner of the
specialist law firm – Workplace Law – which deals with all
aspects of workplace law and specialises in acting for
employers. 

He holds a Diploma Law (SAB, 1981) and a Masters
Degree in Commerce (Deakin 1992). In 1994, Mr
Williamson was one of the first five solicitors in NSW to
become an Accredited Specialist in Employment &
Industrial Law with the Law Society of NSW.

These Directors are all in office at the date of this report.

Company Secretary

The company secretary at the end of the financial year is:

ANTHONY CANNON 
BA (ECON), FCIS, CPA, MAICD, M. MGT, M. BUS LAW 
Mr Cannon has been employed by The Spastic Centre
since 1988 as General Manager – Corporate Services. 
In 1996 Mr Cannon was appointed Company Secretary.
He is secretary to all Board Committees.

Victor Nossar Marelle Thornton, AM Robin Way Peter Whitfield Brian Williamson



directors’
report continued
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Board of Finance & Human Services Fundraising Property & Research Ethics 
Directors’ Audit Resources Committee Committee Equipment Committee Committee
Meetings Committee Committee Meetings Meetings Committee Meetings Meetings 

Meetings Meetings Meetings

Board Members Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number

Eligible attended Eligible attended Eligible attended Eligible attended Eligible attended Eligible attended Eligible attended Eligible attended

to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend

Mr C. Beckett 9 8 3 2 2 2 3 3 3 2 5 5 6 6

Dr N. Best 9 9 3 3 5 5 6 6

Mr M. B. Bryant 9 9 3 3 2 2 3 3

Mr R. Miller 9 7 3 2 2 1 3 2

Mr J. Morgan # 7 4 3 2

Ass. Prof. Victor Nossar 9 7

Mrs M. A. Thornton AM 9 9 3 3 2 2 3 3 2 2 3 3

Dr R. Way 9 4 2 2 3 2

Mr P. Whitfield 9 8 3 2 2 2 2 1 3 2

Mr B. Williamson 9 9 2 2

# Denotes leave of absence approved from Board and Committee duties 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
The number of Directors’ meetings (including meetings of Committees of Directors) and number of meetings attended by each
of the Directors of the Company during the financial year are:



FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Finance and Audit Committee enhances the credibility,
objectivity and accountability of The Spastic Centre by
assisting the Board in discharging its responsibilities in
relation to financial management, monitoring and
controlling risk, internal control systems and reporting
financial information. 

The Committee also provides a forum for communication
between the Board, senior financial management and the
external auditors.

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
The Human Resources Committee advises and makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
remuneration of senior management. 

The Committee also advises management in the
development, implementation and review of policies in the
Human Resources and Industrial Relations areas, including
any references from the Board in respect of Human
Resources management and Industrial Relations.

SERVICES COMMITTEE
The Services Committee reviews, advises and makes
recommendations to the Board on the nature and scope of
service practice and delivery within The Spastic Centre. 

The Committee also consults widely with stakeholders
about effective service delivery so that issues of duty of
care, legal liability and service quality are brought to the
Board’s attention.

FUNDRAISING COMMITTEE
The Fundraising Committee considers opportunities for
increasing funds from both existing and new fundraising
programs. 

The Committee also advises and makes recommendations
on the financial viability, ethics and legal aspects of
existing and proposed fundraising programs.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT COMMITTEE
The Property and Equipment Committee oversees the
effective management of the use, and potential use of the
land, buildings and equipment which The Spastic Centre
controls. 

The Committee evaluates advice about land, buildings or
items of equipment used by The Spastic Centre.
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RESEARCH COMMITTEE
The Research Committee reviews all initiatives in respect of
soliciting research proposals, particularly in areas
designated by the Board as having a high priority.

The Committee also considers all submissions regarding
research and makes recommendations for approval,
where appropriate, to the Ethics Committee. 

ETHICS COMMITTEE
The Ethics Committee provides independent scrutiny of all
research proposals to ensure that the designated
procedures provide for the ethical treatment of
participants. 

GOVERNANCE
The Company and its controlled entities operate as
companies limited by guarantee with the exception of The
Cerebral Palsy Foundation Pty Ltd which is a proprietary
limited company. The Company is governed by Directors
who are elected by the members in a general meeting. 

Any member of the Company can stand for election to the
Board, if correctly nominated

The Articles of Association limit the number of Directors to
a minimum of five and a maximum of ten. Half of the
Directors retire each year. 

Resolution requirements for general meetings are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
The principal activities of the Company and its controlled
entities are to provide access to a range of services and
facilities to children and adults with cerebral palsy and
their families in NSW and the ACT and, where
applicable, to people with other disabilities who can
benefit from the services offered.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the
activities of the consolidated entity during the year.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
The operating surplus of the consolidated entity 
for the financial year was $9,431,265 (2005-2006:
$1,084,468). 

The Company is exempt from Income Tax. 

Board Committees
The Board of The Spastic Centre operates through seven standing committees with delegated authority and terms

of reference. The Committees meet throughout the year as the business of each Committee necessitates. 

The agenda for Committee meetings is prepared in conjunction with the Chairman of the relevant Committee.

Papers and submissions are distributed to Committee members in advance and each Committee is free to invite

members of management or others to attend meetings, or take external advice, when considered appropriate. 

The purpose and function of these Committees are described below.



directors’
report

continued

STATE OF AFFAIRS
In the opinion of the Directors there were no significant
changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity
that occurred during the financial year under review that
are not otherwise disclosed in this report or the financial
statements. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION
The consolidated entity’s long-term residential, day and
respite care activities are subject to environmental
regulations under both Commonwealth and State
legislation. The consolidated entity aims to achieve a high
standard in environmental matters, and the Board believes
that adequate systems are in place for the management of
its environmental requirements. During the financial year
licences were renewed and taken out as and when
required by environmental authorities. The Directors have
not received notification nor are they aware, of any
breaches of environmental requirements as they apply to
the consolidated entity.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature
likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to
affect significantly the operations of the consolidated
entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs
of the consolidated entity, in future financial years.

DIVIDENDS
The Company and its controlled entities are prohibited by
their Constitutions from paying dividends.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS
The Directors do not believe it likely that there will be any
material changes in the operations of the consolidated
entity for the next twelve months.

AUTHORITY TO FUNDRAISE (CFN 10943)
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales has been granted
authority to raise funds under the provisions of section 16
of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991. 

That authority remains in force until 1 September 2009.

TAX DEDUCTIBILITY OF DONATIONS
The Spastic Centre and its controlled entities are
deductible gift recipients as defined in the Income Tax
Assessment Act. Donations of $2.00 or more are tax
deductible in Australia.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
The remuneration of Directors is disclosed in Note 20 in
the Financial Statements. One Director, Mr J. Morgan,
receives remuneration in his capacity as an employee of
the Company. Since the end of the previous financial year,
no other Director received or became entitled to receive
remuneration.

The Board members of The Spastic Centre provide their
time and expertise on an entirely voluntary basis and
receive no fees, salaries or benefits for the work they
undertake on behalf of the Board.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF 
DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Company has paid a premium in respect of a contract
insuring the Directors and Officers. The Directors have not
disclosed the terms of the policy under which the premium
was paid, or the identity of the insurer of any limit of
liability, as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of
the insurance contract.

LEAD AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
The Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration is set out on
page 11 and forms part of the Directors’ Report for the
financial year ended 30 June 2007.

MEMBERS
As at 30 June 2007 there were 520 members (2006: 537
members) of the Company.

The Directors’ Report was authorised for issue by the
Directors dated at Sydney this 19 September 2007.

M. A. Thornton, AM 
Director

M. B. Bryant
Director
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To the Directors of The Spastic Centre of New South Wales

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2007
there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 
in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG Kathy Ostin, Partner
Sydney, 19 September 2007

Lead Auditor’s
Independence Declaration

under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001



directors’
declaration

1) In the opinion of The Spastic Centre of New South Wales (the Company):

a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 14 to 32, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June
2007 and of their performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Regulations 2001;

b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 1(a); and

c) there are no reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will not be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

2) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the group entities identified in Note 23 will be able to
meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee
between the Company and those group entities pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

M. A. Thornton, AM M. B. Bryant
Director Director 
Sydney, 19 September 2007 
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declaration by 

chief executive officer
in respect of fundraising appeals

I, Rob White, Chief Executive Officer of The Spastic Centre of New South Wales, 
declare in my opinion:

(a) the financial statements give a true and fair view of all income and expenditure of 
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales with respect to fundraising appeal activities
for the financial year ended 30 June 2007;

(b) the Income Statement gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs with respect 
to fundraising appeal activities as at 30 June 2007;

(c) the provisions of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and Regulations and 
the conditions attached to the authority have been complied with during the period
from 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007; and 

(d) the internal controls exercised by The Spastic Centre of New South Wales 
are appropriate and effective in accounting for all income received and applied from
any fundraising appeals.

Dated at Sydney this 19 September 2007.

Rob White
Chief Executive Officer



Corporations Act 2001. These additional procedures included
obtaining an understanding of the internal control structure for
fundraising appeal activities and examination, on a test basis, of
evidence supporting compliance with the accounting and
associated record keeping requirements for fundraising appeal
activities pursuant to the Charitable Fundraising (NSW) Act 1991
and Regulations. It should be noted that the accounting records and
data relied upon for reporting on fundraising appeal activities are
not continuously audited and do not necessarily reflect after the
event accounting adjustments and the normal year end financial
adjustments for such matters as accruals, prepayments, provisioning
and valuations necessary for year end financial report preparation.
The performance of our statutory audit included a review of internal
controls for the purpose of determining the appropriate audit
procedures to enable an opinion to be expressed on the financial
report. This review is not a comprehensive review of all those
systems or of the system taken as a whole and is not designed to
uncover all weaknesses in those systems. The audit opinion
expressed in this report pursuant to the Charitable Fundraising
(NSW) Act 1991 has been formed on the above basis. 

STATEMENT OF CONTINUED INDEPENDENCE
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We confirm that the
independence declaration required by the  Corporations Act 2001,
provided to the directors of The Spastic Centre of New South Wales
on 19th September 2007, would be unchanged if provided to the
directors as at date of this auditor’s report.

AUDITOR’S OPINION PURSUANT TO THE 
CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
In our opinion, the financial report of The Spastic Centre of New
South Wales is in accordance with:
a) the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

i. giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and the
consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2007 and
of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii.complying with Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

b) the financial report also complies with International Financials
Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 1.

AUDIT OPINION PURSUANT TO THE CHARITABLE FUNDRAISING
(NSW) ACT 1991
In our opinion:
a)the financial report gives a true and fair view of the financial result

of fundraising appeal activities for the financial year ended 30
June 2007;

b)the financial report has been properly drawn up, and the
associated records have been properly kept for the period from 1
July 2006 to 30 June 2007, in accordance with the Charitable
Fundraising (NSW) Act 1991 and Regulations;

c) money received as a result of fundraising appeal activities
conducted during the period from 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007
has been properly accounted for and applied in accordance with
the Charitable Fundraising (NSW) Act 1991 and Regulations; and

d)there are reasonable grounds to believe that The Spastic Centre
of New South Wales will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

KPMG Kathy Ostin, Partner
Sydney, 25 September 2007

Independent Audit Report
to the members of The Spastic Centre of New South Wales
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Pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001 and Charitable Fundraising
(NSW) Act 1991 and Regulations

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL REPORT
We have audited the accompanying financial report of the The Spastic
Centre of New South Wales (“the Company”) for the financial year
ended 30 June 2007, which comprises the balance sheets as at 30
June 2007 and the income statements, statements of changes in equity
and cash flow statements for the year then ended, a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes 1 to 29
and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the
Company and the entities it controls at the year’s end or from time to
time during the financial year. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility
also includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In note
1, the directors also state, that the financial report, comprising the
financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial
Reporting Standards. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require
that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial report. We performed the procedures to assess whether in
all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian
Accounting  Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations), a view which is consistent with our understanding of
the Company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position and
of their performance. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. 

ADDITIONAL SCOPE PURSUANT TO THE CHARITABLE
FUNDRAISING (NSW) ACT 1991
In addition, our audit report has also been prepared for the
members of the Company and the consolidated entity in accordance
with Section 24(2) of the Charitable Fundraising (NSW) Act 1991.
Accordingly we have performed additional work beyond that which
is performed in our capacity as auditors pursuant to the



balance sheets
as at 30 June 2007
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CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 7 9,910,611 2,353,701 9,823,709 2,285,972

Trade and other receivables 8 2,061,266 1,794,737 2,128,779 1,603,687

Inventories 9 421,388 397,132 421,388 397,132

Assets classified as held for sale 10 – 894,821 – 894,821

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 12,393,265 5,440,391 12,373,876 5,181,612

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other investments 11 18,383,717 13,066,284 9,618,931 5,849,944

Property, plant and equipment 12 11,371,074 11,114,963 11,371,074 11,114,963

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 29,754,791 24,181,247 20,990,005 16,964,907

TOTAL ASSETS 42,148,056 29,621,638 33,363,881 22,146,519

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 13 6,536,256 4,581,180 9,446,542 7,609,165

Employee benefits 14 4,055,911 3,897,390 1,555,073 1,505,736

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 10,592,167 8,478,570 11,001,615 9,114,900

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employee benefits 15 784,712 670,557 362,135 271,308

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 784,712 670,557 362,135 271,308

TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,376,879 9,149,127 11,363,750 9,386,209

NET ASSETS 30,771,177 20,472,511 22,000,131 12,760,310

EQUITY

General funds 29,393,470 19,962,205 21,372,456 12,530,602

Asset revaluation reserve 16 1,377,707 510,306 627,675 229,708

TOTAL EQUITY 30,771,177 20,472,511 22,000,131 12,760,310

The Balance Sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements set out on 
pages 18 to 32.

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $N
O

T
E
S



CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $N
O

T
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income statements
for the year ended 30 June 2007
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Revenue from government funding 4 36,682,482 32,828,694 36,682,482 32,828,694

Revenue from fundraising and bequests 13,345,362 10,950,669 13,345,362 10,950,669

Revenue from rendering of services 5,019,981 3,612,383 5,019,981 3,612,383

Revenue from sale of goods 789,276 638,067 789,276 638,067

Other income – – 479,989 –

Financial income – interest 463,005 200,554 429,280 194,016

Financial income – distributions from trusts and dividends 1,319,561 1,247,805 547,022 593,620

Rental income 289,100 378,274 289,100 378,274

Gain on sale of assets held for resale 2,354,096 – 2,354,096 –

Gain on sale of other investments 984,619 205,045 494,959 84,832

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 232,061 220,973 232,061 220,973

Total revenue & other income 61,479,543 50,282,464 60,663,608 49,501,528

Accommodation expenses 13,032,566 12,991,898 13,032,566 12,991,898

Individual and family support expenses 14,376,836 12,671,060 14,215,109 12,671,060

Employment services expenses 5,176,081 4,787,195 5,176,081 4,787,195

Community access service expenses 4,647,629 4,504,337 4,647,629 4,504,337

Fundraising expenses 3,496,492 2,956,526 3,496,492 2,956,526

Community education and information 2,531,942 2,106,019 2,531,942 2,106,019

Technical services expenses 1,610,690 1,805,305 1,610,690 1,805,305

Cost of goods sold 541,308 485,459 541,308 485,459

Financial expenses 6,715 9,579 6,715 9,579

Administration expenses 6,628,019 6,880,618 6,563,222 6,825,253

Other expenses – – – 500,000

Total expenses 6 52,048,278 49,197,996 51,821,754 49,642,631

Operating surplus/(deficit) for the year 9,431,265 1,084,468 8,841,854 (141,103)

The Income Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements set out on
pages 18 to 32.



statements of 
changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2007
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CONSOLIDATED                                   THE COMPANY

$ $ $ $ $ $

General Asset Total General Asset Total

Funds Revaluation Equity Funds Revaluation Equity

Reserve Reserve

Opening balance 1 July 2005 18,877,737 192,450 19,070,187 12,671,705 72,650 12,744,355

Net change in fair value of other
investments available for sale – 317,856 317,856 – 157,058 157,058

Total non-profit items recognised 
directly in equity – 317,856 317,856 – 157,058 157,058

Operating surplus/(deficit) 
for the year 1,084,468 – 1,084,468 (141,103) – (141,103)

Total recognised income & 
expenses for the period 1,084,468 – 1,084,468 (141,103) – (141,103)

Closing balance 30 June 2006 19,962,205 510,306 20,472,511 12,530,602 229,708 12,760,310 

Opening balance 1 July 2006 19,962,205 510,306 20,472,511 12,530,602 229,708 12,760,310

Net change in fair value of other 
investments available for sale – 867,401 867,401 – 397,967 397,967

Total non-profit items recognised 
directly in equity – 867,401 867,401 – 397,967 397,967

Operating surplus for the year 9,431,265 – 9,431,265 8,841,854 – 8,841,854

Total recognised income & 
expenses for the period 9,431,265 – 9,431,265 8,841,854 – 8,841,854

Closing balance 30 June 2007 29,393,470 1,377,707 30,771,177 21,372,456 627,675 22,000,131

The Statements of Changes in Equity are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
set out on pages 18 to 32.



cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 June 2007
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $N
O

T
E
S

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts in the course of operations 59,814,029 52,508,756 59,772,779 52,467,506

Cash payments to suppliers and employees (52,698,165) (50,916,377) (52,459,176) (50,909,588)

Net cash from operating activities 26 7,115,864 1,592,379 7,313,603 1,557,918

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest received 463,005 194,289 429,280 187,752

Distributions from trusts and dividends 1,319,561 1,247,805 547,022 593,620

Payments for property, plant and equipment (2,692,339) (3,720,706) (2,692,339) (3,720,706)

Payments for other investments (4,453,281) (964,115) (3,374,269) (165,219)

Payments for developed property held for resale (48,421) (38,934) (48,421) (38,934)

Proceeds from assets held for sale 3,300,587 – 3,300,587 84,832

Proceeds from sale of other investments 984,619 205,045 494,959 –

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,574,030 2,393,694 1,574,030 2,393,694

Net cash from investing activities 447,761 (682,922) 230,849 (664,961)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Financing costs (6,715) (9,579) (6,715) (9,579)

Net cash from financing activities (6,715) (9,579) (6,715) (9,579)

Net increase in cash held 7,556,910 899,878 7,537,737 883,378

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 2,353,701 1,453,823 2,285,972 1,402,594

Cash at the end of the financial year 7 9,910,611 2,353,701 9,823,709 2,285,972

The Cash Flow Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements set out on 
pages 18 to 32.
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1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Spastic Centre of New South Wales (the
'Company') is a company domiciled in Australia. The
address of the Company's registered office is 189
Allambie Road, Allambie Heights, NSW 2100. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 30 June 2007 comprise the
Company and its controlled entities (together referred
to as the 'consolidated entity'). The consolidated
entity's activities are explained in note 2.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the
Directors dated at Sydney on 19 September 2007.

a) Statement of compliance
The financial report is a general purpose financial
report which has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) (including
Australian interpretations) adopted by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the
Corporations Act 2001. The financial report of the
Company and the consolidated entity also complies
with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) and interpretations adopted by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.

b) Basis of preparation
The financial report has been prepared in Australian
dollars on the basis of historical costs and, except
where stated, does not take into account changing
money values or fair values of non-current assets.

The accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently to all periods presented in the
consolidated financial report.

The accounting policies have been applied by all
entities in the consolidated entity.

In the opinion of the Directors, having regard to the
not-for-profit nature of the consolidated entity's
business, the terms used in the prescribed format of the
income statements are not appropriate. The words
"Operating Surplus/(Deficit)" have been substituted for
the terms "Net Profit/(Loss)" in the prescribed income
statements.

Significant accounting judgements
The preparation of a financial report requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
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notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007



c) Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are
taken into account. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

In the Company's financial statements, investments in
subsidiaries are carried at cost.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and
losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup
transactions are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and bank short-term deposits.

e) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at their
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 1(o)).

f) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value, with net realisable value being the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses. Cost is based on the first-in first-out
principle and includes expenditure incurred in bringing
them to their present condition and location.

g) Assets classified as held for sale
Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the applicable asset is brought up-to-
date in accordance with accounting standards. Then,
on initial classification as held for sale, assets are
recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale and on any subsequent remeasurement are
included in the income statement.

h) Other investments
Other investments comprise investments in equity
securities which are classified as being available for
sale. Subsequent to initial recognition such investments
are shown at fair value, being quoted market prices at
reporting date. Changes in the market value other than
impairment as described in note 1(o) are recorded in
the Asset Revaluation Reserve.
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When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly
in equity is recognised in the income statement.
Financial instruments classified as held for trading or
available for sale investments are recognised/
derecognised by the consolidated entity on the date it
commits to purchase/sell the investments.

i) Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and
equipment.

The value of in-kind donations is determined by
independent valuation at the time of the donation of
land and on completion of building works. This
independent valuation forms the deemed cost of such
donated assets.

The carrying value of all non-current assets is reviewed
by the Directors annually. If the carrying value exceeds
the remaining service potential, the asset is written
down to the lower amount. The service potential is
primarily related to the provision of goods and services
to adults and children with cerebral palsy and their
families within New South Wales and the ACT.

Subsequent costs
Costs incurred on assets subsequent to initial
acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that
future economic benefits in excess of the originally
assessed performance of the asset will flow to the
consolidated entity in future years. Costs that do not
meet the criteria for capitalisation are expensed as
incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation
Items of property, plant and equipment, including
buildings, leasehold improvements and motor vehicles,
but excluding freehold land, are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight line method.
Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition.

In respect of assets under construction depreciated
commences from the date the asset is ready for use.

Depreciation rates used for each class of asset, for the
current and previous years, are as follows:

2007 2006

Buildings 4% 4%

Crown Land Improvements 4% 4%

Plant and equipment 15-25% 15-25%

Motor Vehicles 15-20% 15-20%



financial
notes

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES ... continued

The residual value, the useful life and the depreciation
method applied to an asset are reassessed at the
reporting date.

Land and buildings are independently valued every
three years (see note 12). Where the carrying amount
of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds the
valuation, the difference is taken as a charge to the
income statement.

j) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their amortised
cost. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are
normally settled within usual trading terms.

k) Employee benefits
Defined contribution superannuation funds
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
funds are recognised as an expense in the income
statement as incurred.

Wages, salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries
and annual leave expected to be settled within 12
months of the year-end represent present obligations
resulting from employees' services provided to
reporting date, calculated at undiscounted amounts
based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the
consolidated entity expects to pay as at reporting date
including related on-costs.

Long term service benefits
The consolidated entity's net obligation in respect of
long-term service benefits is the amount of future
benefits that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods. The obligation
is calculated using expected future increases in wages
and salary rates including related on-costs and
expected settlement dates.

l) Revenue and Income
Total revenue is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received net of the amount of goods and
services tax.

Government funding
Government grant revenue is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with
the conditions attached to them and the grant will be
received.

Grants received on the condition that specified
services are delivered, or conditions are fulfilled, are
considered reciprocal. 

Such grants are initially recognised as a liability and
revenue is recognised as services are performed or
conditions fulfilled.

Revenue from non-reciprocal grants is recognised
when received.

Fundraising and bequests
Donations and legacies are accounted for on a cash
basis. Revenue from legacies comprising bequests of
shares or other property are recognised at fair value,
being the market value of the shares at the date the
company becomes legally entitled to the shares or
property.

Donations received on the condition that specified
services are delivered, or conditions are fulfilled, are
considered reciprocal. 

Such donations are initially recognised as a liability
and revenue is recognised as services are performed
or conditions fulfilled.

Revenue from non-reciprocal donations is recognised
when received.

Rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the
period in which the service is provided having regard
to the stage of completion of the transaction.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer.

Assets sales
The gain or loss on disposal of all non-current assets
and listed equity securities available for sale is
determined as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset at the time of the disposal and the
net proceeds on disposals.

Financial income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues. Dividend
income is recognised on the date the consolidated
entity's right to receive payments is established, which
in the case of equity securities is the ex-dividend date.

Financial income is separately recognised in the
income statement.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in the income statement on
a straight line basis over the life of the lease.

m) Volunteer workers
No monetary value has been attributed to the valuable
services provided by the many volunteer workers.

n) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of
the amount of goods and services tax (GST) except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable
from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
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notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007



In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount
of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in
the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows
on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which
are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are
classified as operating cash flows.

o) Impairment
The carrying amounts of the consolidated entity's
assets other than inventories are reviewed at each
balance date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated with any
impairment loss being recognised in the income
statement, unless an asset has previously been
revalued, in which case the impairment loss is
recognised as a reversal to the extent of that previous
revaluation with any excess being recognised through
the income statement.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of listed equity security available for sale is
calculated by reference to its current fair value.

p) Expenses
Operating lease payments
The company has entered into leases of premises, motor
vehicles and office equipment as disclosed in Note 18.

Management has determined that all the risks and
rewards of ownership of these premises, vehicles and
equipment remain with the lessor and has therefore
classified the leases as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised
in the income statement on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease.

Financial expenses
Financial expenses represent interest relating to
interest-bearing liabilities and bank overdraft.

Financial expenses are recognised using the effective
interest rate method.

q) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:
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• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

• the consolidated entity retains the right to receive
cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay
to a third party; or

• the consolidated entity has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expired. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

r) Non-current assets held for sale
Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the assets (and all assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with applicable accounting standards.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale, non-
current assets and disposal groups are recognised at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale are included in the income statement, even when
there is a revaluation.

The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent
remeasurement.

2. SEGMENT REPORTING

The consolidated entity operates predominantly in one
industry. The principal activities are to provide access
to a range of services and facilities to children and
adults with cerebral palsy and their families in NSW
and the ACT and, where applicable, to other people
with disabilities who can benefit from the services
offered.

3. INCOME TAX

No income tax is payable by the consolidated entity as
Section 50-5 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997
exempts recognised Charitable Institutions from Income
Tax. The Spastic Centre and its controlled entities are
deductible gift recipients as defined in the Income Tax
Assessment Act. 
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notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $

4. GOVERNMENT FUNDING

The following Government support is included under 
Government funding:

Commonwealth Government

Department of Families and Community Services and 
Indigenous Affairs 2,946,218 2,781,903 2,946,218 2,781,903

Department of Employment and Workplace Relations 1,707,289 1,733,769 1,707,289 1,733,769

Department of Education, Science and Training 700,403 107,373 700,403 107,373

5,353,910 4,623,045 5,353,910 4,623,045

NSW Government

Department of Ageing, Disability and Home Care 30,357,149 27,180,567 30,357,149 27,180,567

Health Department 581,454 610,254 581,454 610,254

Department of Education and Training 389,969 414,828 389,969 414,828

31,328,572 28,205,649 31,328,572 28,205,649

Total Government funding 36,682,482 32,828,694 36,682,482 32,828,694

5. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Audit services

Auditors of the Company – KPMG Australia

Audit and review of the financial report 79,700 77,550 79,700 77,550

Other regulatory audit services 12,800 10,300 12,800 10,300

Conversion to AIFRS – 22,400 – 22,400

92,500 110,250 92,500 110,250

Other services

Other assurance services – KPMG Australia – 15,000 – 15,000

92,500 125,250 92,500 125,250

6 EXPENSES

Expenses include the following items:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,094,259 1,239,523 1,094,259 1,239,523

Impairment of trade and other receivables 21,466 626,817 21,466 626,817

Employee benefits expense (includes payments 5,217,667 4,868,985 1,533,425 1,411,153
to defined contribution superannuation funds of 
$2,467,682 (2006 $2,321,653))

Rental expense on operating leases 1,754,188 1,586,711 1,754,188 1,586,711

Financial expenses – Interest expense 6,715 9,579 6,715 9,579

Donation to The Cerebral Palsy Foundation – – – 500,000

The Cerebral Palsy Foundation is wholly controlled by The Spastic Centre of New South Wales, and acts as a
fundraising vehicle to underpin the activities of The Spastic Centre.

The impairment loss recorded in the prior year of $651,009 (resulting from the entry into administration of a debtor of
the consolidated entity) was recovered during the current year.



CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $
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CURRENT ASSETS

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash 3,348,381 403,701 3,261,479 335,972

Short-term bank deposits 6,562,230 1,950,000 6,562,230 1,950,000

9,910,611 2,353,701 9,823,709 2,285,972

Short-term bank deposits are at call, paying interest at 30 June of 6.15% (2006: 5.50%).

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 753,004 541,370 753,004 541,370

Other receivables and prepayments 1,308,262 1,253,367 1,165,613 1,062,317

Other receivables from wholly-owned subsidiaries – – 210,162 –

2,061,266 1,794,737 2,128,779 1,603,687

Trade receivables are shown net of impairment losses for non collections of $40,754 (2006: $19,288). 

Other receivables and prepayments are shown net of impairment losses of $0 (2006: $651,009) 
resulting from the entry into administration of a debtor of the consolidated entity.

9. INVENTORIES

Non-manufacturing stores 421,388 397,132 421,388 397,132

10.ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Developed property held for resale – 894,821 – 894,821

Land held for sale in the prior year was disposed of during the current year for $3,300,587, realising a net gain of
$2,354,096.

11.OTHER INVESTMENTS

Listed equity securities available for sale 18,383,717 13,066,284 9,618,929 5,849,942

Investments in subsidiaries – – 2 2

18,383,717 13,066,284 9,618,931 5,849,944

Listed equity securities available for sale are carried at fair value being the quoted market price at reporting date.
Macquarie Private Portfolio Management Limited invests funds on behalf of the consolidated entity in Australian
shares, property trusts and investment trusts. 
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notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold Buildings Improvements Plant and Motor Capital Total
Land to Crown Equipment Vehicles Works

Land in Progress

Cost

At 1 July 2005 2,899,893 5,275,916 3,165,182 731,668 3,722,168 316,240 16,111,067

Acquisitions 110,000 632,448 – 16,661 2,572,844 388,753 3,720,706

Disposals – – – (101,698) (2,817,465) – (2,919,163)

at 30 June 2006 3,009,893 5,908,364 3,165,182 646,631 3,477,547 704,993 16,912,610

At 1 July 2006 3,009,893 5,908,364 3,165,182 646,631 3,477,547 704,993 16,912,610

Acquisitions – 388,788 – – 2,303,551 – 2,692,339

Transfers – 704,993 – – – (704,993) –

Disposals – – – – (2,077,216) – (2,077,216)

At 30 June 2007 3,009,893 7,002,145 3,165,182 646,631 3,703,882 – 17,527,733 

The amounts for the Company are the same as for the consolidated entity for the years ended 30 June 2006 and 
30 June 2007.

Depreciation and impairment losses

At 1 July 2005 – 1,677,397 2,278,931 655,305 692,933 – 5,304,566
Depreciation charge

for the year – 211,037 126,607 32,548 869,331 – 1,239,523

Disposals – – – (81,958) (664,484) – (746,442)

At 30 June 2006 – 1,888,434 2,405,538 605,895 897,780 – 5,797,647 

At 1 July 2006 – 1,888,434 2,405,538 605,895 897,780 – 5,797,647

Depreciation charge
for the year – 236,335 126,606 14,131 717,187 – 1,094,259

Disposals – – – – (735,247) – (735,247)

At 30 June 2007 – 2,124,769 2,532,144 620,026 879,720 – 6,156,659 

The amounts for the Company are the same as for the consolidated entity for the years ended 30 June 2006 and 
30 June 2007. There were no impairment losses.

Carrying amounts

At 1 July 2005 2,899,893 3,598,519 886,251 76,363 3,029,235 316,240 10,806,501

At 30 June 2006 3,009,893 4,019,930 759,644 40,736 2,579,767 704,993 11,114,963 

At 1 July 2006 3,009,893 4,019,930 759,644 40,736 2,579,767 704,993 11,114,963 

At 30 June 2007 3,009,893 4,877,376 633,038 26,605 2,824,162 – 11,371,074 

Independent valuations in 2007, 2006 and 2005 of land and buildings were carried out on the basis of current and
future usage. The 2007 land and building valuationswere carried out by independent valuers, Geoff Fitzsimmons &
Associates Pty Ltd who valued the properties at Wagga Wagga, Nowra, Sefton, Brookvale, Chester Hill and St Ives - 
6 Stanley Street.

Land and building valuations for 2006 were carried out by Kenny and Good Pty Ltd with the exception of Dubbo
which was carried out by Benchmark Property Advisory.

All 2005 land and building valuations were carried out by Geoff Fitzsimmons & Associates Pty Ltd.



The following table lists all land and buildings owned by the consolidated entity and the date of the most recent
valuation. As land and buildings are recorded at cost, the valuations have not been brought to account.

Carrying Amount Fair Date of
Freehold Land 30 June 2007 Value Valuation

Dee Why 175,000 500,000 2006

Dubbo 110,000 110,000 2006

Prairiewood 525,000 1,050,000 2005

Wallsend – 9 Iranda Grove 60,000 175,000 2005

Wallsend – 11 Iranda Grove 60,000 175,000 2005

Moruya 140,000 140,000 2005

Newcastle 26,000 190,000 2005

Wagga Wagga 115,000 180,000 2007

Nowra 98,400 200,000 2007

Sefton 260,000 330,000 2007

Brookvale 515,500 880,000 2007

St Ives – 6 Stanley Street 924,993 1,880,000 2007

3,009,893 5,810,000

Written Down Value Fair Date of
Buildings 30 June 2007 Value Valuation

Dee Why 75,840 250,000 2006

St Ives – 349 Mona Vale Road 150,000 300,000 2006

The Thornton Centre (VB Lifestyles) 254,527 520,000 2006

Dubbo 586,745 167,500 2006

Moruya 372,706 372,706 At Cost 2006

Prairiewood 1,120,307 3,675,000 2005

Wallsend – 9 Iranda Grove 140,160 265,000 2005

Wallsend – 11 Iranda Grove 140,160 265,000 2005

Newcastle 819,789 910,000 2005

Wagga Wagga 267,244 260,000 2007

Nowra 281,400 240,000 2007

Sefton 154,085 195,000 2007

Brookvale 328,855 480,000 2007

Chester Hill 130,000 560,000 2007

St Ives – 6 Stanley Street 55,558 120,000 2007

4,877,376 8,580,206

The written down value recorded for the Dubbo building includes renovations at cost of $425,945, not included in the
prior year's valuation.

Improvements to Crown Land 633,038 3,720,000 2006

Improvements to Crown land are buildings at Allambie which include McLeod House, Venee Burges House, cottages,
Hydrotherapy Pool, workshop and garage.

The State and Commonwealth Governments have interests in particular properties held by the consolidated entity for
which they have made grants to assist acquisition. It is understood that it is not their present intention to seek a refund
of their interest in those assets. In the event of a sale of these properties, repayment of grants is not required, provided
the funds are used in a way approved by them. It is the Directors' intention that such funds be used in such a way.
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notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

CURRENT LIABILITIES

13.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 1,072,815 1,638,131 1,072,815 1,638,131

Government funding received in advance 2,782,710 872,916 2,782,710 872,916

Other creditors and accruals 1,438,936 1,470,798 1,411,595 1,247,468

Deferred revenue 1,241,795 599,335 1,241,795 599,335

Other payables to wholly-owned subsidiaries – – 2,937,627 3,251,315

6,536,256 4,581,180 9,446,542 7,609,165

14.EMPLOYEE BENEFITS – CURRENT

Salaries and wages accrued 147,112 146,230 45,283 28,748

Liability for long service leave 1,673,866 1,600,870 755,535 744,141

Liability for annual leave 2,234,933 2,150,290 754,255 732,847

4,055,911 3,897,390 1,555,073 1,505,736

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

15.EMPLOYEE BENEFITS – NON CURRENT

Liability for long service leave 784,712 670,557 362,135 271,308

16.ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE

The asset revaluation reserve records the cumulative net changes in the fair value of listed equity securities available
for sale until the investment is derecognised.

17.FINANCING FACILITIES

The consolidated entity has access to the following 
lines of credit at balance date (all unused):

Total facilities available:

Bank overdraft 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000

The bank overdraft facility is secured by a floating charge over the assets of the consolidated entity. 
The weighted average interest rate for the overdraft as at 30 June 2007 is 9.95% (2006: 9.95%).
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2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $
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18.OPERATING LEASES

Leases as lessee
Future operating lease commitments not provided 
for in the financial statements and payable:

– not later than one year 1,494,101 1,060,556 1,494,101 1,060,556

– later than one year but not later than five years 2,027,852 892,630 2,027,852 892,630

3,521,953 1,953,186 3,521,953 1,953,186

The consolidated entity leases a number of properties, wheel-chair accessible motor vehicles and IT equipment. 
None of these leases included contingent rentals. Details as follows:

Type Term Option to Renew Future Increments

Properties 0 - 24 Months Yes Annually (CPI)

Land 50 Years Yes None

Motor Vehicles 36 Months Yes None

IT Equipment 36 - 60 Months Yes None

19.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The details and estimated maximum amounts of contingent liabilities, classified according to the party from whom the
contingent liability arises, are set out below. The Directors are of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect
of these matters, as it is not probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not
capable of reliable measurement.

Commonwealth Bank of Australia - Autopay Facility 1,055,877 1,055,877 1,055,877 1,055,877

Permanent Trustee Australia - Spring St Chatswood 17,027 17,027 17,027 17,027

Australian Postal Corporation 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

Jode Pty Ltd ATF Wetherill Park Unit Trust 32,122 32,122 32,122 32,122

1,145,026 1,145,026 1,145,026 1,145,026

The consolidated entity's bank guarantee facility has a maximum limit of $1,150,000 (2006: $1,150,000) of which
$1,145,026 (2006: $1,145,026) was utilised.

20.RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

Transactions with related parties
The ultimate parent entity provides administration services for controlled entities, for which it is not reimbursed.
During the financial year, the ultimate parent entity received grants of $479,989 (2006: nil) from the controlled entity,
The Cerebral Palsy Foundation to contribute to the funding of research, work on the CP Register and the International
Development Program. The Cerebral Palsy Foundation also made grants of $161,727 (2006: nil) to the controlled
entity The Cerebral Palsy Institute.
In the prior financial year, the ultimate parent entity donated $500,000 to The Cerebral Palsy Foundation.
Other wholly-owned controlled entities charge the Company for salaries and wages incurred and paid as part of their
normal operations.

Balances with entities within the wholly owned group
The aggregate amounts payable to wholly owned controlled entities by the Company at balance date are:

Other payables 2,937,627 3,251,315

Directors compensation
One director received compensation during the year of $3,540 in his capacity as an employee. The directors act in
an honorary capacity and received no compensation for their services as Directors.
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notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $

20.RELATED PARTY INFORMATION ... continued
Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation included 
in "Employee benefits expenses" are as follows:
Robert White, Chief Executive Officer
Douglas Signorini, Chief Financial Officer
Anthony Cannon, Company Secretary
Christopher Campbell, GM Client Services
Deborah Hoffman, GM Strategy, 

Research & Development
Elizabeth Foy, GM Service 

Development & Communications
Francis Sedmak, GM People, Learning & Culture 
Short-term employee benefits 1,048,445 902,309 1,048,445 902,309
Long term benefits 23,335 47,080 23,335 47,080

1,071,780 949,389 1,071,780 949,389

21.MEMBERS' GUARANTEE

In accordance with the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association each member of the Company has a
maximum liability of $20 in the event of the Company being unable to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.
As at 30 June 2007 there were 520 members (2006: 537).

22.COMPANY NAME

The Spastic Centre of New South Wales and its controlled entities are incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The
companies are limited by guarantee and exempted under Section 150 (1) of the Corporations Act 2001 from using
the word "Limited" with the exception of The Cerebral Palsy Foundation Pty Ltd.

23.CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Particulars in relation to controlled entities all of which are incorporated in Australia
CONSOLIDATED

Name INTEREST HELD
2007 2006

Ultimate parent entity % %
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales

Subsidiaries subject to Cross Guarantee
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Accommodation South 100 100
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Accommodation North 100 100
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Accommodation Hunter 100 100
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Therapy Services 100 100
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Community Access Service 100 100
The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Venee Burges House 100 100

Subsidiaries not subject to Cross Guarantee
The Cerebral Palsy Institute 100 100
The Cerebral Palsy Foundation Pty Ltd 100 100

The Cerebral Palsy Foundation Pty Ltd acts as trustee for The Cerebral Palsy Foundation. The Directors of The Cerebral
Palsy Foundation Pty Ltd during the year were Mrs M. A. Thornton AM and Mr M. B. Bryant.

Refer to note 28 for details of Deed of Cross Guarantee.

24.ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The consolidated entity receives a significant portion of its operating revenue in the form of grants and tax
concessions/exemptions from the Commonwealth and State Governments.
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25.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit and interest rate risk arises in the normal course of the Company and the consolidated entity's
business.

Interest rate risk
During the year cash assets were deposited with recognised financial institutions. The weighted average interest
receivable for the Company and the consolidated entity's year was 5.89% (2006: 5.29%). There is no interest rate
risk on other assets and liabilities.

Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. 
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Company and the
consolidated entity do not normally require collateral in respect of financial assets.
At balance date there was a significant concentration of credit risk on investments for both the Company and the
consolidated entity. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each financial 
asset in the balance sheets.

Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The balances of financial assets and liabilities have been stated at their net fair value.

26.RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the cash flows statements, cash includes cash on hand and at bank and short-term deposits at call,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash does not include investments in unit trusts. Cash at the end of the financial
year as shown in the cash flows statements is the same as shown on the balance sheets.

Reconciliation of Operating surplus from ordinary activities to net cash from operating activities:

Operating surplus/(deficit) 9,431,265 1,084,468 8,841,854 (141,103)

Add/(Less) items classified as investing/
financing activities:

Gain on sale of other investments (984,619) (205,045) (494,959) (84,832)

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (232,061) (220,973) (232,061) (220,973)

Gain on assets held for sale (2,354,096) – (2,354,096) –

Interest received (463,005) (200,554) (429,280) (194,016)

Distributions from trusts and dividends (1,319,561) (1,247,805) (547,022) (593,620)

Interest paid 6,715 9,579 6,715 9,579

Add non-cash items:

Amortisation and depreciation 12 1,094,259 1,239,523 1,094,259 1,239,523

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables 8 (266,529) (267,244) (525,091) (97,404)

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 9 (24,256) (64,961) (24,256) (64,961)

Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 13 (565,315) 17,662 (565,316) 17,662

Increase/(Decrease) in government funding 
received in advance 13 1,909,794 774,272 1,909,794 774,272

Increase/(Decrease) in other creditors and accruals13 (31,863) 388,302 164,127 364,470

Increase/(Decrease) in deferred revenue 13 642,460 – 642,460 –

Increase/(Decrease) in payables to 
wholly-owned subsidiaries 13 – – (313,688) 532,238

Increase/(Decrease) in employee benefits 14,15 272,675 285,155 140,163 17,083

Net cash from operating activities 7,115,864 1,592,379 7,313,603 1,557,918
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notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

27.FUNDRAISING APPEALS CONDUCTED DURING THE FINANCIAL PERIOD

Information to be furnished under the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991
Fundraising appeals conducted during the financial year included mail appeals, telephone appeals, lotteries, money box
collections, and various other fundraising projects and receiving of indirectly solicited donations and unsolicited bequests.

Results of fundraising appeals

a) Gross proceeds from fundraising appeals 13,345,362 10,950,669
Less: Direct costs of fundraising appeals 3,496,492 2,956,526

Net surplus obtained from fundraising appeals 9,848,870 7,994,143

b) Application of net surplus obtained from fundraising appeals

Distributions (expenditure on direct services) 39,391,825 37,254,833
Administration expenses 6,628,019 6,880,618
Community education and information 2,531,942 2,106,019
Operating surplus 9,431,265 1,084,468

57,983,051 47,325,938

c) The difference of $48,134,181 (2006 $39,331,795) between the $9,848,870 surplus (2006: $7,994,143)
available from fundraising appeals conducted and total direct expenditure of $57,983,051 (2006: $47,325,938)
was provided from the following sources.

Government grants and subsidies 36,682,482 32,828,694

Rendering of services 5,019,981 3,612,383

Sale of goods 789,276 638,067

Interest received or receivable 463,005 200,554

Distributions from trusts and dividends 1,319,561 1,247,805

Rental income 289,100 378,274

Gain on sale of assets held for resale 2,354,096 –

Gain on sale of other financial assets 984,619 205,045

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 232,061 220,973

48,134,181 39,331,795

2007 2007 2006 2006 

$ % $ % 

Total cost of fundraising/ 3,496,492 / 2,956,526 / 
gross revenue from fundraising 13,345,362 26 10,950,669 27

Net surplus from fundraising/ 9,848,870 / 7,994,143 / 
gross revenue from fundraising 13,345,362 74 10,950,669 73

Total cost of services/ 39,391,825 / 37,254,833 / 
total direct expenditure 48,551,786 81 46,241,470 81

Total cost of services/ 39,391,825 / 37,254,833 / 
total income received 61,479,543 64 50,282,464 74
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28.DEED OF CROSS GUARANTEE

Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998 the wholly-owned subsidiaries listed
below are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit, and lodgement of financial
reports, and directors' report.

It is a condition of the Class Order that the company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed Of Cross
Guarantee. The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the
event of winding up any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the Corporations Act 2001. 

If a winding up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Company will only be liable in the event that after six
months any creditor has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries have also been given similar guarantees in the event
that the Company is wound up.

The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are:

The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Accommodation South 

The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Accommodation North

The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Accommodation Hunter

The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Therapy Services

The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Community Access Service

The Spastic Centre of New South Wales – Venee Burges House

The consolidated income statements and consolidated balance sheets, comprising the Company and subsidiaries that
are party to the Deed, after eliminating all transactions between parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 30 June
2007 are set out on the following page.



32 THE SPASTIC CENTRE • 2007 ANNUAL REPORT 

CONSOLIDATED

2007 2006

$ $

financial
notes
notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

28.DEED OF CROSS GUARANTEE ...  continued

(i) Summarised income statement and retained general funds 

Operating surplus/(deficit) 8,841,854 (141,103)

General funds at beginning of the year 12,530,602 12,671,705

General funds at end of the year 21,372,456 12,530,602

(ii) Balance sheet

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 9,823,709 2,285,972

Trade and other receivables 2,128,779 1,603,687

Inventories 421,388 397,132

Assets classified as held for sale – 894,821

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 12,373,876 5,181,612

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other financial assets 9,618,931 5,849,944

Property, plant and equipment 11,371,074 11,114,963

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20,990,005 16,964,907

TOTAL ASSETS 33,363,881 22,146,519

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 9,446,542 7,609,165

Employee benefits 1,555,073 1,505,736

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,001,615 9,114,900

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employee benefits 362,135 271,308

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 362,135 271,308

TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,363,750 9,386,209

NET ASSETS 22,000,131 12,760,310

EQUITY

General funds 21,372,456 12,530,602

Asset revaluation reserve 627,675 229,708

TOTAL EQUITY 22,000,131 12,760,310

29.EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to affect
significantly the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
consolidated entity, in future financial years.
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very best
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CREDIT CARD DETAILS

Please debit my credit card 
for the following amount on a monthly basis: $ ________ 

Card #: _ _ _ _/_ _ _ _/_ _ _ _ /_ _ _ _

Expiry date _ _ /_ _

Card Type:

■ Mcard       ■ Visa       ■ Bcard       ■ Amex       ■ Diners

Signature:

Cardholder Name:

OR
DIRECT DEBIT DETAILS

I/we request that an amount of $ ___________ be drawn from my/our bank
account as a donation to The Spastic Centre under the Direct Debit System on
a monthly basis (minimum $10 per month).

Account Details

Financial Institution:

BSB:

Account Number:

Account Name:

I/we authorise The Spastic Centre of NSW APCA ID 207171 to debit my/our
account $ ______ per month to The Spastic Centre of NSW. Authorise and
request the Debit User to debit the customer’s account through Bulk Electronic
Clearing System.

Acknowledgement

By signing this Direct Debit Request you acknowledge that you have read and
understood the terms and conditions of the Client Services Agreement
governing the debit arrangements between you and The Spastic Centre of NSW
as set out in this Request and the Direct Debit Request Service Agreement.

Signature/s:

Date:

Direct Debit Client Service Agreement – The Spastic Centre
We will draw from your account and frequency specified on your direct debit request form.We will not change
the amount or frequency of your donation arrangements without your prior approval. You may request to
change the amount of the donation and/or frequency of your donations by contacting us in writing at least
ten business days prior to the next payment date. You may terminate your donation arrangements at any time
by giving written notice to us. Such notice should be received by us at least fourteen working days prior to
the next payment date and can also be made through your own financial institution. Where the due date falls
on a non-business day, we will draw the amount on the next business day. We will keep all information
pertaining to your nominated account at the Financial Institution, private and confidential. It is your
responsibility to ensure that sufficient funds are available in the nominated account to meet a donation on
its due date. It is also your responsibility to ensure that the authorisation given to draw on the nominated
account is identical to the account signing instruction held by the financial institution where the account is
based. When you consider that a drawing has been initiated incorrectly, you may take the matter up directly
with us or lodge a claim through your own financial institution.

■ $30 per month 

will fund a child’s 
aqua fitness or 

therapy program.

Mail this form to:
The Spastic Centre
PO Box 184,
Brookvale   NSW   2100

HOW YOUR DONATION 
CAN HELP US!

Your monthly contribution will greatly help children and adults
with cerebral palsy to lead independent,

fulfilling and enjoyable lives.

■ $20 per month will 

provide Jessika with
1 hour of playgroup.



thank
you
The Spastic Centre gratefully acknowledges the support of all those who 

donated in many ways – from the smallest coin to the largest cheque.  

We appreciate the support we receive and extend our heartfelt thanks 

to all our many donors and sponsors.

(Mission Statement)



sponsors & supporters

MIGHT AND POWER GALA RACE DAY
COMMITTEE
■ Nick Moraitis AM (Chairman)
■ Paul Simons AM DUniv
■ Hon John Brown AO

CBD GOLF ESCAPE COMMITTEE
■ Bruce Thomas (Chairman)
■ Ian Mayer – Sydney City Toyota
■ Brenton Aggar – Macquarie Bank
■ Bill Bartlett – Suncorp
■ George Bedwani – Metro Hotels & Pubs
■ David Forster – Sydney City Toyota
■ David Gillard – Bob Stanton Corporate Golf
■ Robert Joske – Robert Joske Management
■ Peter Physick – Speakers Australia
■ Stuart Salier – Optus Communications
■ John Sintras – Starcom
■ Bob Stanton – The Stanton Group

ITALIAN AFFAIR COMMITTEE
■ Pat Sergi OAM (Chairman)
■ Walter Bugno
■ Frank Carioti
■ Michael Daniele
■ Tony De Lutiis
■ Tony Labbozzetta
■ Roy Mittiga
■ Dr Nat Romeo
■ Roy Spagnolo OAM
■ Tony Zappia

20/TWENTY CHALLENGE COMMITTEE
■ James Hodgkinson (Chairman)
■ Ross Ellice-Flint
■ Gary Dawson OAM

HIGHLANDS TOWN & COUNTRY BALL
COMMITTEE
■ Fiona Nixon (President)
■ Cath Brennan (Treasurer)
■ Libby Abbey
■ Therese Cullen

MAJOR DONORS & SUPPORTERS
■ AMP Charitable Trust 
■ AMP Foundation 
■ Aristocrat Technologies Pty Ltd 
■ Bellhave Foundation 
■ Church L
■ Clayton Utz 
■ Clubs ACT
■ Col Crawford Lifestyle Cars
■ Col Crawford OAM
■ Commonwealth Bank Staff Community Fund 
■ Crown Financial 
■ Enid Irwin Charitable Trust 
■ Finney D & M 
■ Gadens Lawyers 
■ Gilbert E 
■ Hannan N & J 
■ Harvey Norman 
■ Hattersley R
■ Hodgkinson J
■ ING Foundation 
■ Italian Affair Committee 
■ KPMG 
■ Lend Lease Real Estate Investments 
■ Liangrove Foundation Pty Ltd 
■ Luke Whitfield Trust 
■ Macquarie Bank Foreign Exchange 
■ Macquarie Bank Foundation 
■ Macquarie Bank Limited 
■ Macquarie Links Charity Challenge
■ Marathon Pty Limited 
■ McGuire B 
■ National Australia Bank Ltd
■ Nick Moraitis AM
■ Nulon Products Australia 
■ Paul Simons AM DUniv
■ Perpetual 
■ Price M
■ Pumpa L 
■ Smith D & P 
■ Sydney City Toyota
■ The Pratt Foundation
■ The Profield Foundation 
■ Trust Foundation 
■ Tyrrell’s Wines
■ Upstream Print Solutions
■ Virgin Management Asia-Pacific 

Committee Members
The following Committees are greatly acknowledged for
their generous contribution and success.



20/TWENTY CHALLENGE 2007
■ Anthony, Steve  ■ Beurmont, Peter  ■ Brits, Grant  
■ Chenoweth, Brett  ■ Clarke, David  ■ Dawson, Gary  
■ Day, Stephen  ■ Donald, Nic  ■ Ellice-Flint, John  
■ Ellice-Flint, Ross  ■ Englesman, Michelle  ■ Girdis, Stephen
■ Green, Anthony  ■ Hattersley, Rob  ■ Hodgkinson, Cathy
■ Hodgkinson, Chris  ■ Hodgkinson, Graeme  
■ Hodgkinson, James  ■ Hodgkinson, Sam  ■ Holden, Angus
■ Jones, Simon Lyndon  ■ Laforest, Tim  ■ Lister, Courtney  
■ Little, Jason  ■ McGuire, Ben  ■ McKeith, Colin  
■ Newbury, Elouise  ■ Newton, Jonathan  
■ Owen - Jones, Rod  ■ Pascoe, Anthony  ■ Phillips, Daniel
■ Phillips, Jackie  ■ Price, Angela  ■ Price, Michael  
■ Reynolds, Guy  ■ Schafer, Molly  ■ Schafer, Neil  
■ Steed, Trent  ■ Stich, Charles  ■ Swann, David  
■ Traill, Michael  ■ Watson, Neil  ■ White, Ben  
■ White, Brian  ■ Williams, Kim  ■ Wilson, David 

20/TWENTY CHALLENGE 2007 / COMPANY
■ Col Crawford Lifestyle Cars  ■ Lend Lease  
■ Macquarie Bank  ■ Macquarie Bank Foundation  
■ Macquarie Goodman  ■ Macquarie Sports  
■ Standfast Corporation

COL CRAWFORD CHARITY GOLF DAY
SPONSORS
■ Aristocrat Technologies  ■ Australian Pharmaceutical Partners
■ Balmain Commercial Mortgages  ■ Barry Smith Holdens  
■ Castrol Oils ain’t Oils  ■ Col Crawford Lifestyle Cars  
■ David Emanuel  ■ Dunbar Smash Repairs  
■ Felix’s Pirate Ship  ■ Felix’s Fan Club  
■ Grahame McCreath Prestige Paint & Panel  
■ Grindley Construction  ■ Harrier-National  
■ Hornsby Mazda  ■ Horwath Motor Industry Services  
■ KPMG  ■ Medirest  ■ Otis Elevator  
■ Pathway International  ■ Prime Constructions  
■ Print Solutions Australia  ■ R.E. Grady Auto Electrical  
■ St. George Automotive Finance  
■ St George Corporate & Business Bank  ■ The Manly Daily
■ Tom Kerr Auto Centre  ■ Walker Auto Electrics  
■ Westpac Business Banking  ■ Willson Pacific Corporation  
■ Winning Appliances

SUPPORTERS
■ 3 Minute Angels  ■ Akubra  ■ American Golf Supplies  
■ Arthur Summons  ■ Australian Grand Prix Corporation  
■ Bayview On The Park  ■ Bill Ashton  
■ Bonville International Golf Resort  ■ BridgeClimb  
■ Brokenwood Wines  ■ Brookvale Insurance Brokers  
■ Cape Mentelle Vineyard  ■ Captain Cook Cruises  
■ Carrier Air-Conditioning  ■ Chevron Publishing Group  
■ Christie’s Party Hire  ■ Claremont Golf Course – Tasmania
■ Club Car  ■ Col Crawford OAM  ■ Cromer Golf Club  
■ Crowne Plaza Hunter Valley  ■ Cypress Lakes Resort  
■ Dance Central  ■ David Emanuel  ■ Dewdrop Water  
■ Diva  ■ Docmaster  ■ Don Harris  ■ Elizabeth Arden  
■ Enigma Business Products  ■ Forty-One Restaurant  
■ Galaxy Imports  ■ Geoff Moles  ■ George Andrews  
■ Guillaume at Bennelong  ■ Hahn Utz  ■ Hamilton Island  
■ Harry Stone  ■ Hope Island Resort Golf Club  
■ Hoyts Chatswood Westfield  ■ Hyatt Regency Coolum  
■ Hyatt Regency Sanctuary Cove  ■ Ian Cairns  ■ II Perugino
■ Jackson’s Awards & Trophies  ■ Joe’s Barbeques  
■ John Mater  ■ John Sieveking  ■ John Winning  
■ Jonah’s Palm Beach  ■ Julie’s Embroidery  ■ Ken Done  
■ Ken Done Gallery  ■ Kingston Beach Golf Club - Tasmania
■ Kookaburra Challenge  ■ Lakes Folly  
■ Lakeside Fish Markets  ■ Launceston Golf Club - Tasmania
■ Madigan’s Vineyard  ■ Mark Jackson  ■ Maui Jim  
■ Maurizio Mencio  ■ Narrabeen Butchery  ■ Neil Anderson
■ Nicholas Bennett  ■ Nivea  ■ Noosa Springs Resort  
■ Novelties Golf  ■ Novotel Twin Waters Resort  ■ Peat’s Bite
■ Peter Best Constructions  ■ Ping  ■ Raymond Clark Jeweller
■ Reef View Hotel, Hamilton Island  ■ Riverside Golf Club  
■ Robyn’s Nest  ■ Ross Willis Photography  
■ Royal Hobart Golf Club – Tasmania  ■ Russell Norwood  
■ Showbiz International  ■ Skippers Afloat  
■ Somersets Shaving Oil  ■ Spirit of Melbourne Cruising
Restaurant  ■ Stella Blu  ■ Sydney Heli-Tours  
■ Sydney Props  ■ Sydney Turf Club  
■ Tallwoods Golf & Country Club  ■ Tamar River Cruise  
■ Tasco  ■ The Henry Jones Art Hotel - Tasmania  
■ The Old Woolstore Apartment – Tasmania  
■ The Vines Golf Resort – Western Australia  
■ The Vintage Golf Club  ■ Thrifty Australia  
■ Twin Waters Golf Club  ■ Tyrrell’s Wines  
■ Ulladulla Guest House  ■ United International Pictures  
■ Vasse Felix  ■ Vaughan Clarke  ■ Warwick Twist  
■ Warringah Golf Club  ■ Warringah Mall  ■ Will Mortlock
■ Winning Appliances  ■ Yarrawonga & Border Golf Club  
■ Yarrawonga Lakeside Apartments  ■ Yoshiaki Matsunaga

sponsors & supporters



MIGHT AND POWER GALA RACE DAY
SPONSORS
■ Aussie  ■ Cadbury  ■ Debortoli Wines  ■ Ellerston Capital  
■ Inghams Love ‘em  ■ Myer  ■ Upstream “Print Less”  
■ Woolworths The Fresh Food People

SUPPORTERS
■ Accent Hire  ■ Accessible Transit Specialists  
■ Alan C. Gray Pty Ltd  ■ Anthea Crawford  ■ Artissimo  
■ Audrey Wilkinson Vineyard  ■ Benefit  ■ Breville  
■ BridgeClimb  ■ Brokenwood Wines  
■ Cadbury Schweppes  ■ Callaway Golf  ■ Coca-Cola  
■ Col Crawford Lifestyle Cars  ■ Crabtree & Evelyn  
■ Crowne Plaza Canberra  ■ Crowne Plaza Coogee Beach  
■ Crowne Plaza Terrigal  ■ Cue Clothing Co  
■ David Holmes  ■ Dick Smith  ■ Docmaster  
■ Eden On The Park  ■ Elizabeth Arden  ■ Ensemble Theatre
■ Ernst & Young  ■ Fisher & Paykel  ■ Flame Opals  
■ Focus Press  ■ Fossil Watches  ■ Gadens Lawyers  
■ Gelway Pearls  ■ Hon John Brown AO  
■ Hughenden Boutique Hotel  ■ Huxley Homes  
■ Independent Liquor Group  ■ Jervis Bay Getaways  
■ Jetcruiser  ■ Joh Bailey  ■ Ken Done  ■ Kevin Fong  
■ Kevin Moses Racing Stables  ■ Kohler Bird Appraisals  
■ Kookaburra Challenge  ■ KPMG  ■ Leanna Street  
■ Lee Manfred PR  ■ Lindt & Sprungli (Australia Pty Ltd)  
■ Louis Cardini  ■ Macquarie Bank  ■ Macquarie Stud  
■ Madigan Vineyard  ■ Magenta Shores Golf Resort  
■ Maui Jim  ■ Moraitis Fresh Packaging  
■ Mrs Margaret Forge  ■ National Australia Bank  
■ Neill Grigg  ■ Network Ten  ■ Nicholas Moraitis AM  
■ Pathway International  ■ Paul Simons AM DUniv  
■ Pearsons Florist  ■ Penrith Whitewater  ■ Peter Goldman  
■ Pratt Foundation  ■ RDP  ■ Revlon  ■ Rost & Kitchener  
■ Royal Doulton  ■ Shoal Bay Resort and Spa  
■ Sydney City Toyota  ■ Sydney Markets Limited  
■ Sydney Turf Club  ■ The Hughenden Boutique Hotel  
■ Tooheys Pty Ltd  ■ Toyota Motor Corporation Australia  
■ Tyrrell’s Wines  ■ Vasse Felix  ■ Vittoria Coffee  
■ Warton Thompson & Co  
■ Woolworths The Fresh Food People

CBD GOLF ESCAPE!
SPONSORS
■ APN Outdoor  ■ Aristocrat Technologies  ■ Australia Post  
■ Buildcorp Australia  ■ Buildcorp Interiors  ■ Caddy Storage
■ Caltex  ■ Canterbury League Club  ■ Computershare  
■ Ernst & Young  ■ Herald Publications 1  
■ Herald Publications 2  ■ Independent Liquor Assoc  
■ Jardine Lloyd Thompson  ■ Macquarie Bank FX 1  
■ Macquarie Bank FX 2  ■ PBL Media  ■ Starcom  
■ Swiss Re 1  ■ Swiss Re 2  ■ Sydney City Lexus  
■ Sydney City Toyota 1  ■ Sydney City Toyota 2  
■ T-Bone.com.au  ■ Time Inc. South Pacific  
■ Toyota Financial Services  ■ Upstream Print Solutions  
■ Westfield

SUPPORTERS 
■ Absolutely Corporate  ■ Accent Hire  ■ Anthea Crawford  
■ Arnhemland Barramundi Nature Lodge  ■ Arthur Wollen  
■ Atos Framing  ■ Audrey Wilkinson Vineyard  
■ Australia Post  ■ Australian Geographic  
■ Australian Jockey Club  ■ Autore  ■ Bill Bartlett  
■ Blue Tongue Brewery  ■ Bob & Lucy Stanton  
■ Bob Stanton Corporate Golf  ■ Bradman Museum  
■ Briar Ridge  ■ BridgeClimb  ■ Brokenwood Wines  
■ Bruce Thomas  ■ Bruce Tyrrell  ■ Bullant Sports  
■ Cadbury Schweppes  ■ Callaway  ■ Cathay Pacific  
■ Channel Nine  ■ Clive Waterman  ■ Computershare  
■ Crabtree & Evelyn  ■ Craig Abercrombie  
■ Crocodile Encounters  ■ Cumulus Wines  ■ Cutter & Buck
■ Cypress Lakes Golf Resort  ■ David Campbell  
■ David Forster  ■ David Gillard  ■ David Jones  
■ De Bortoli Wines  ■ Digital Sports  ■ Docmaster  
■ Electrolux  ■ Ensemble Theatre  
■ Fairfax General Magazines  ■ Figgins Group  
■ Fitness First  ■ Gary Dawson  ■ General Peter Cosgrove
AC MC (Retd)  ■ George Bedwani  ■ Glen Boss  
■ Glenguin Estate  ■ Graeme and Kim Furness  
■ Grand Mercure Hotel on Swanston  ■ Honey Body Salon  
■ Hunter Resort – Hunter Valley  ■ Hunter Valley Gardens  
■ Ian Mayer  ■ Imax Theatre  ■ Indooroopilly Golf Club  
■ Jardine Lloyd Thompson  ■ John Sintras  
■ Ken Duncan Gallery  ■ Kiddicare  ■ Kowloon Shangri-La,
Hong Kong  ■ Macquarie Links Golf Club  
■ Madigan’s Vineyard  ■ Maui Jim  ■ McWilliams Wines  
■ Midas  ■ Mike Wilson  ■ Monahan Estate  ■ Network Ten
■ Nivea  ■ Nokia  ■ Novotel Melbourne on Collins  
■ Opera Australia  ■ Optus  ■ Palazzo Versace – Gold
Coast  ■ PB Sports Academy  ■ Peacock Hill Vineyard  
■ Pepper Tree Wines  ■ Peter & Jill Wedgwood  
■ Peter Physick  ■ Peter Sintras  ■ Quest River Park Central  
■ R.M.Williams  ■ Revlon  ■ Robert Joske  ■ Roche Wines
■ Roxy Piano Man  ■ Sandalyn Wilderness Estate  
■ Scarborough Wines  ■ Seven Network  
■ Sony BMG Music Entertainment  ■ Sovereign Hill Vineyard  
■ Stuart Salier  ■ Sweetwater Hermitage  
■ Tamburlaine Wine  ■ Team Event  ■ Terraces on Wickham
■ The Australian Golf Club  ■ The Cellar Restaurant  
■ The Golden Door Health Retreat - Elysia  
■ The Mansion Hotel at Werribee Park  
■ Thomas Gallane Photography  ■ Thredbo Alpine Hotel  
■ Tim Webster  ■ Time Inc.  ■ Tintilla Estate Wine  
■ Tower Lodge, Hunter Valley  ■ Tranquil Vale  
■ Tyrrell’s Wines  ■ Ulladulla Guest House  ■ Universal Music
■ Video Ezy  ■ Video Plus

sponsors & supporters



MIGHTY FINE EVENING COMMITTEE
■ Jim Ntais  ■ Tony Ramondo

SPONSORS AND SUPPORTERS
■ Affordable Graphics  ■ Australian Rugby Union  
■ Bruce K Cook  ■ Castel D’Oro  
■ City of Canada Bay Council  ■ Claudio Seafoods  
■ Dania’s Timber and Hardware  ■ De Costi Seafoods  
■ George Kapeleris  ■ Kenny Graham  ■ Madigans Vineyard
■ Majors Bay Complete Hardware  ■ Manning Funerals  
■ Maui Jim  ■ National Rugby League  ■ Ocean Foods  
■ Team Fenech  ■ Toldock  ■ Tony Ramondo  
■ Tyrrell’s Vineyards

2006 SUN HERALD CITY TO SURF
Edwin Baral  ■ Peter Comino  ■ Rick Thatcher  

■ Phillip Sedden

DONORS $1,000 TO $9,999
■ Acxiom  ■ Addisons Lawyers  ■ Agios Petros Kynourias  
■ AGL St Leonards  ■ Albert, M  ■ Anthony, S  
■ Armstrong Op Shop   ■ ASX-Reuters Charity Foundation Ltd
■ Australian Chinese Charity Foundation Inc  
■ Australian Hotel Ballina  ■ Barton, C  ■ Bayer Australia
Limited  ■ Beaumont, P  ■ Bellerby, T  ■ Bennett, W  
■ C. A & C. Berrell  ■ Blackman, E  ■ Blanch, W  ■ Block, J  
■ Bonyhady, B R  ■ Boorne, J  ■ Bradfield, R  ■ Bradley, N
■ Brennan, R  ■ Brennan, T  ■ Bridge, J  ■ Bryant, M  
■ Byrne, A W  ■ C & M Antoniou Pty Ltd  ■ Cameron, J  
■ Campbell, F  ■ Campbell, R  ■ Cartwright, A  
■ Chapman, R & R  ■ City of Ryde Council  ■ Clarke, D  
■ Clayton Utz Foundation  ■ Clown Town Family Entertainment
Centre  ■ Club Phoenix  ■ Commonwealth Bank  
■ Community of Belmore Youth Society  ■ Cottle, G  
■ Cowan, J & R  ■ Dach, E  ■ de Weerd, J  
■ Deutsche Bank Sydney  ■ Devine, P  ■ Divall, J & R  
■ Dixon, E  ■ Doherty, T  ■ Dwight, C  ■ Dyson, T  
■ Eliassen, P  ■ Elkington, F  ■ Ellice Flint & Co  
■ Ellice-Flint, J  ■ Elliott, R  ■ Employee Children’s Appeal  
■ Energy Australia  ■ Flynn, Y  ■ Foley, P  ■ Frankipile Pty
Ltd Aust  ■ Fraser, J H  ■ Freeman, M J  ■ Frensham School
Mittagong  ■ Gargaro, R  ■ Gaven, R  ■ Gemfruitz Pty Ltd
■ Girdis, S  ■ Goldman P & M  ■ Gould, J  ■ Gray, A  
■ Grimsley, J  ■ Halloran, W  ■ Hansford, R  ■ Harris, B  
■ Harris, S  ■ Hemmings NA & HC  ■ Herbert Geer &
Rundle Lawyers  ■ Higgs, R J  ■ Holland, D  ■ Hooper, R  
■ Howard Koutnik  ■ Howell, R G  ■ Hrebeniuk, P  
■ Hudson, I  ■ Humphreys Newsagency Manly  ■ Hutchins, I  
■ In-Corporate  ■ Ionian Group  ■ Jackson, B  ■ Jackson, S
■ James, R  ■ Jardine Lloyd Thompson  ■ Johnson, B  
■ Johnston, M  ■ Jones, B  ■ Jones, K  ■ Jones, R  
■ Jones, S  ■ Jord International Pty Ltd  
■ JW Kirkwood Pty Ltd  ■ K Montgomery & Co  
■ Karabellas, A  ■ Keeping It Green  ■ Kingston, M  
■ KKKP Services  ■ Lakeman, A  ■ Lam, R  ■ Lawler, K  
■ Lesnie W & M  ■ Lye, P  ■ MacGregor, F  ■ Machin, M
■ Maher, K  ■ Martin, B & N  ■ McGee, T  ■ McKeith, C  
■ McNally, R F  ■ McPherson, B  ■ Men of League
Wollongong  ■ Mesley, J  ■ Middleton, L  ■ Moses, K  
■ Mossman, K  ■ Mt Druitt Cedars Tavern  ■ Neville, Miss  
■ Newcombe Sales Pty Ltd  ■ Newling, L  ■ Nonnis, P  
■ Pantaleo P & R  ■ Phillips, D  ■ Piccinelli, R  ■ Plant, D  
■ Poole, S  ■ Poulos, J  ■ Pryor, R  ■ R P Horn Family Trust
■ Rajola, R  ■ Ralston, M J  ■ Ratnarajah, S  ■ Read, G  
■ Regiti Pty Ltd  ■ Reynolds, S  ■ Rich, J  ■ Robert Half
International  ■ Robertson-Cunninghame R C  ■ Ronneberg, J  
■ Samuel Morris Foundation  ■ Schafer, N  ■ Schutt, I  
■ Scully, J  ■ Selective Kitchens  ■ Seton, R W  
■ Shadforths Limited  ■ Shepherd, J  ■ Shuetrim, C  
■ Sirona Dental Systems  ■ Sitch, C  ■ Sleap, R  
■ St Ignatius College Lane Cove  ■ St Ives North Public School
■ Stanton K J  ■ Starr, E  ■ Stephenson, N  
■ Studdert M  ■ Sydney City Toyota  ■ Tang, P  
■ TDK (Australia) Pty Ltd  ■ Terrey Hills Rotary Club  
■ Textor M  ■ The Baxter Charitable Foundation  
■ The Calm Centre  ■ The Freedman Foundation  
■ The Hammond Care Group  ■ The Manors of Mosman  
■ The R A Gale Foundation  ■ Timbrell, J  ■ Traill, M  
■ Tranda Holdings  Pty Ltd  ■ Ulladulla Milton Lions Club  
■ Variety NSW  ■ Vida Rees Foundation Pty Ltd  
■ Virgin Mobile  ■ Wait, R  ■ Watson, N  
■ WD-40 Company (Australia) Pty Ltd  ■ Wenkart, J  
■ White, P  ■ Williamson, B  ■ Wilson, P  ■ Workplace Law
■ Yvonne O'Connor School of Dancing 

sponsors & supporters



DONORS $500 TO $1,000
■ Addenbrooke Pty Limited  ■ Albert, E  ■ Alibrandi, R  
■ Allanson, N  ■ Antill, K  ■ Aravantinos, M  ■ Arnott, K  
■ Ashcroft, P  ■ Ashmont Public School  
■ Asquith Boys High School  ■ ASX Operation P/L  
■ Australia Post Strawberry Hills  ■ Australian Biotech
Laboratories Pty Ltd  ■ Avenue Capital Management  
■ Babington Lees, V  ■ Backhouse, N  ■ Balmer, K  
■ Baragry, R J & B J  ■ Bardwell Park Infants School  
■ Barrett, D  ■ Barton, A  ■ Barton, Y  ■ Batten, M & M  
■ Beaugeard, L  ■ Becher Foundation  ■ Beeby, W  
■ Belford, A  ■ Bellizia, Y  ■ Bender, M  ■ Bennett, G  
■ Bennett, M  ■ Benton, J  ■ Bilton, P  ■ Bioletti, P  
■ Bisley & Company Pty Ltd  ■ Bisley, M  ■ Black, S  
■ Blackmores Ltd  ■ Blatch, F  ■ Boliston, C  ■ Books, C  
■ Booth, K  ■ Bourne, M  ■ Boydell, I  ■ Bradley, I  
■ Bradley, K  ■ Bradley, M  ■ Brandt, J  ■ Bretnall, J  
■ Brock, G  ■ Brown, G  ■ Brown, S  ■ Browne, L  
■ Bulakul, S  ■ Burcher, P  ■ Burchett, M  ■ Butchart, A  
■ Byrne, R  ■ Callus, R  ■ Cameron's Envelopes Minto  
■ Camiglieri, E  ■ Campbell, M  ■ Carmello Farms Pty Ltd  
■ Carter, L  ■ Cartledge, I  ■ Centre Management Frenchs
Forest  ■ Chapman, V  ■ Christ, R  ■ Chwalko, C  
■ Clarke Alice  ■ Clarke Andrew  ■ Clarke, J  
■ Clayton, B  ■ Clifton, F  ■ Cohen, E  ■ Collins, L & I  
■ Commander Australia Limited  ■ Connah, P  ■ Cooke, D
■ Cooper, D  ■ Cormack, D  ■ Coulter, L & G  
■ Cowan J & Hartstein D  ■ Cowen, L  ■ Crawshaw, R H  
■ Crouch, R  ■ Cunningham, K  ■ Curtis, A  ■ Cvetovski, T
■ Dann, L  ■ Davey, B  ■ Davies, N  ■ Davis, A  
■ Davis, R  ■ De Dominicis, R  ■ De Montfort, R  
■ Dean, C  ■ Denistone East Public School  
■ Devlin, Mr & Mrs  ■ Dibbs Abbott Stillman  ■ Dobbin, M  
■ Donnelley Constructions Pty Ltd  ■ Dorn, L  ■ Dunn, A  
■ Dunne, B  ■ Edwards, Mr  ■ Ellis, P  ■ Evans, P J  
■ Fagan, D  ■ Feed & Feast Kenthurst  ■ Field, A J  
■ Field, R A  ■ Findley, D  ■ Fischer, D  ■ Fitness, P  
■ Fitzgerald, J  ■ Fleming, J  ■ Flinn, L  ■ Ford, S  
■ Forrest, S  ■ Fraser, B  ■ Frost, K  
■ Gambit Group Crows Nest  ■ Gannon, L  ■ Gavin, K  
■ Georgeson, A  ■ Gilligan, E  ■ Gilligan, P  
■ Gleeson J Acorn Trading  ■ Glennie, P  ■ Goldstein, H  
■ Goninan Employees Charity Fund  ■ Gostling, P  
■ Goulburn East Public School  ■ Grant, H  ■ Gray, M  
■ Green, J  ■ Grigg, D & O  ■ Gruber, M  ■ Habib Bros
Pty Ltd  ■ Habib, J  ■ Hain, R  ■ Haines, B  ■ Halim, M  
■ Halnan, J Y  ■ Hamazkaine Arshak & Sophie Galstaun
School Ingleside  ■ Hamilton, C  ■ Hamilton, E  ■ Hamilton, I
■ Hamilton, S  ■ Hampson, B  ■ Hansen, L  ■ Hardwick, C
■ Harpur, M  ■ Harris, C  ■ Harris, C & S  ■ Harris, G E  
■ Hart, P  ■ Hayata PC Australia Pty Ltd  ■ Heesong, P  
■ Henderson, W  ■ Hennessy, M  ■ Hesslein, A  
■ Hickey, A  ■ Higgins, D  ■ Higgins, R  ■ Hoffman, D  
■ Hollingworth, K & J  ■ Holm, R  ■ Hunt, D & H  
■ Huxtable, C  ■ Hyman, P  ■ Inaburra School Bangor  
■ Inwood, A  ■ Jackson, J  ■ Jessep, O  ■ Johns, J  
■ Johnson, D  ■ G & K Johnson  ■ Johnson, K  
■ Johnston, A  ■ Johnston, RA  ■ Joy, P  ■ Judd Commercial
Lawyers ■ Kadwell, E  ■ Kane, M  ■ Kennedy, D & J  
■ Kenny, S  ■ Kesby, B  ■ Keyvar, P  ■ Kimberly-Clark
Australia  ■ Klein, A & D  ■ Kler, H  ■ Knights, K  
■ Kominatos, Z  ■ Kotze, L  ■ Laidlaw, M  ■ Langley, J  
■ Langlois, C  ■ Lau, E  ■ List, B  ■ Lister, C  ■ Lloyd, J  
■ Loewensohn, T  ■ Long, J  ■ Long, T  ■ Lowe, J  
■ Luthi, S  ■ Macarthur, M  ■ Mackney, D  ■ Madden, R  
■ Mailroom Express Regents Park  ■ Manly Warringah Orchid
Society  ■ Manton, C  ■ Marketsoft Services  ■ Marsh, P  
■ Martin, N  ■ Martin, R  ■ Mary MacKillop Primary School

South Penrith  ■ Matheson, L  ■ McCallum, D  ■ McGinn, L
■ McIntosh, D  ■ McKenzie, A  ■ McKenzie, D  ■ McLean, J
■ Meares, S  ■ Mellor, R  ■ Michael & Mary Whelan Trust
Ltd  ■ Mihkelson, H  ■ Miland, M D  ■ Miller, M  
■ Molloy, R  ■ Mort, M  ■ Moseley, J  ■ Mott, B  
■ Movsas, M  ■ Mr Stainless  ■ Murray, A  ■ Murray, K  
■ Murrumburrah Public School  ■ N Moit & Sons NSW Pty Ltd
■ Nabarro, T  ■ Newlinds, J & M  ■ Newton, N  
■ Nittim, Z  ■ Norman, R  ■ NSW Railway Employees
Welfare  ■ Oatley, V  ■ Olive, P  ■ O'Loughlin, G & L  
■ Olsen, R  ■ Oppen, R  ■ Orbis Environmental  
■ Osborne, J  ■ O'Sullivan, J  ■ O'Sullivan, M  
■ Oyster Bay Public School  ■ Parkes Public School  
■ Parkinson, K  ■ Parr, C  ■ Partridge, J  ■ Pattinson, B  
■ Payne, B  ■ Pearce, J  ■ Perivolaris, P  ■ Piggott, A  
■ Plummer, R J  ■ Pollard, P  ■ Poole, A  ■ Port Stephens
Busy Bees  ■ Pratt, L  ■ Ragg, W  ■ Ramage, M  ■ Rattray, 
I & L  ■ Reddin, T  ■ Reed-Elsevier Singapore  ■ Reisner, P  
■ Riverina Womens Club Inc  ■ Robberds, L  ■ Robertson, M
■ Rodriguez, H  ■ Rowling, E  ■ Ryan, B  ■ Rydge, R  
■ S T Cheong & Associates Pty Ltd  ■ Sanderson, S  
■ SAP Australia  ■ Saunders, D L  ■ Sawyer, P  ■ Schiller, A
■ Seveque, C  ■ Seymour, A  ■ Shalders, N  ■ Shein, J  
■ Shepherd, A  ■ Shirriff, P  ■ Shirtley, G  ■ Silberberg, E
■ Skinner, J E  ■ Slack, B  ■ Small, A  ■ Sproat, J E  
■ St Clare's College Griffith  ■ St Ives North Primary School
K_6 Club  ■ St Mary's School Crookwell  ■ Standards
Corporation Pty Ltd  ■ Stapelton, J  ■ Staunton, H  ■ Steel, M
■ Steensby, C  ■ Stirling, J R  ■ Stoyles, L  ■ Strong, J  
■ Sule College Auburn  ■ Sutcliffe, M  ■ Sykes, A  ■ Tan, M
■ Tan, T H  ■ Tanti, J  ■ Taverner Research Co  ■ Taylor, C  
■ Taylor, N  ■ Teng, W  ■ Terrey Hills Public School  
■ The Allen G Garrett Trust  ■ The Isabelle Heim Fund  
■ The Point Preschool Inc Oyster Bay  ■ The Salvation Army  
■ Tidex, A  ■ Treasure Island Toys  ■ Vallejo, N  
■ Van Kool A  ■ Vandervaere, R  ■ Vatiliotis, F  
■ Vaughan, B M  ■ Vivers, J  ■ Vivian-Jones, D  
■ Vodafone Australia  ■ Volkofsky & Brown Pty Ltd  
■ W M Bruce Associates  ■ Wadham, L  
■ Wahbe Constructions  ■ Walker, G  ■ Ward, G  
■ Warren, E  ■ Watkinson, R  ■ Way, R  ■ Waylas Pty Ltd
■ Weaver, M  ■ White, W B  ■ Whitton, H  
■ Wiadrowski, C  ■ Wickens & Mitchell Pty Ltd  
■ Williams, A  ■ Williams, J & G  ■ Williams, K  
■ Williams, P  ■ Wood, D  ■ Woodforde, S  
■ Worrall, N  ■ Wright, J  ■ Wright, T & T  
■ Wrighter, E M  ■ Yabsley, R  ■ Yaremenko, F  
■ Yeng, M  ■ Yexley, M  ■ Youssef, R  ■ Zraik, H
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SUPPORTING SCHOOLS
■ Abbotsleigh   ■ Balgowlah Boys  
■ Covenant Christian School  ■ Loreto Kirribilli   
■ Mackellar Girls Campus  ■ Marist College North Shore  
■ Mount Annan High School  ■ NBSC - Cromer Campus  
■ North Sydney Girls High School  ■ Pymble Ladies College
■ Sceggs Redlands  ■ St Clare’s ACT  ■ St Ignatius -
Riverview  ■ The Forest High School  ■ Wenona Girls

SUPPORTING CLUBS NSW
■ Albury Commercial Club Ltd  ■ Armidale Ex-Services
Memorial Club  ■ Balgowlah RSL Memorial Club  
■ Bankstown District Sports Club  ■ Bathurst Panthers Leagues
Club  ■ Bathurst RSL Club Ltd  ■ Bega RSLClub Limited  
■ Bermagui Country Club  ■ Blacktown Workers Club  
■ Bomaderry Bowling Club  ■ Bonnie Doon Golf Club  
■ Brighton-Le-Sands Amateur Fishermen's  ■ Canada Bay
Soccer Club  ■ Canberra Southern Cross Club  
■ Canterbury Bulldogs Leagues Club  ■ Club Marconi Ltd  
■ Clubs ACT  ■ Coffs Ex-Services Club  ■ Cudgen Leagues
Men's Bowling Club  ■ Dapto Leagues Club Limited  
■ Dee Why RSL Club Limited  ■ Dickson Tradesmen's Union
Club  ■ Dubbo RSL Memorial Club Ltd  ■ Goulburn & District
Soldiers Club  ■ Goulburn Railway Bowling Club  
■ Goulburn Workers Sport & Recreation Club  
■ Granville RSL Club  ■ Guyra Bowling & Recreation Club Ltd
■ Hornsby RSL Club  ■ Huskisson RSL Club Limited  
■ Lithgow & District Workmen's Club  ■ Merimbula Imlay
Bowling Club  ■ Merimbula RSL Club  
■ Milton-Ulladulla Bowling Club  ■ Moree & District Services
Club Ltd  ■ Mortdale RSL Club  ■ Mounties  
■ Narromine United Services  ■ Orange City Bowling Club  
■ Orange Ex- Services Club  ■ Pambula-Merimbula Golf 
Club Ltd  ■ Pittwater Memorial Bowling Club  
■ Pittwater RSL Club  ■ Queanbeyan Kangaroo Rugby 
League Club  ■ Ramsgate RSL Club  ■ Roseville Golf Club Ltd  
■ Rotary Club of Belconnen  ■ Ryde Ex-Services Memorial
Club  ■ Shoalhaven Ex-Servicemen's Club Ltd  
■ South Hurstville RSL Club  ■ South Sydney Junior Rugby
League Club  ■ St Marys Rugby Leagues Club  
■ The Hills District Bowling Club  ■ Wallsend Bowling Club  
■ Western Suburbs (Newcastle) Leagues Club  
■ Western Suburbs Leagues Club  ■ Wests Ashfield  
■ Wollongong Ex-Services Club Ltd  ■ Wollongong RSL
Bowling Club Limited  ■ Wyong Rugby League Club

SUPPORTING CLUBS ACT  
■ Belconnen Soccer Club  ■ Canberra Labor Club Group  
■ Canberra Raiders Sports Club  ■ Canberra Southern Cross
Club  ■ Canberra Tradesmen’s Union Club/CFMEU  
■ Eastlake Football Club  ■ The Burns Club  ■ The Canberra
Club  ■ The Hellenic Club of Canberra  ■ The Mawson Club
■ The Sports Club Kaleen  ■ The Weston Club (formerly
Canberra Royals)  ■ Vikings Group  ■ West Belconnen
Leagues Club  ■ WodenTradesmen’s Union Club/CFMEU

SUPPORTERS ACT 
■ Canberra Hospital  ■ Gourmet – By-Design ACT  
■ Lyn Mills  ■ Rotary Belconnen ACT  
■ Ski - N - Save – Jindabyne  ■ Sparke Helmore ACT  
■ The Canberra Times  ■ Win Television

COUNTRY COUNCILS
■ Camden Country Council  ■ Goulburn Country Council  
■ Griffith & District  ■ Kootingal & District  ■ Leeton & District  
■ Narrandera & District  ■ Orange & District  
■ Tamworth & District  ■ Temora & District  ■ Wagga 

BEQUESTS
■ Albretsen, L  ■ Baxter Charitable Foundation  
■ Beveren, A. P. V  ■ Bogner, J  ■ Caldwell, J  
■ Chourlianis, E  ■ Connell, J. H  ■ Cottome, G. E  
■ Cox, D. T  ■ Crawford, E  ■ Crossing, T. A  ■ Gibbs, M  
■ Gluck, K & G  ■ Goodwin, J. R  ■ Hill, E.A R S  
■ Knights, A. S. R  ■ MacDougall, C  ■ Maddock, P. M  
■ Major, P. C  ■ Mathews, M. J  ■ Morgan, T. M  
■ McClelland, C. H. G  ■ O'Brien, M. L  ■ Oliver, B. B  
■ Poole, F  ■ Priestley, C. R  ■ Rees, L. M  ■ Resch, E.R.E  
■ Squires, P  ■ Varcoe, R. D  ■ Vosicky, N  ■ Walker, T. I  
■ Walsh, H. E  ■ Watson, R  ■ Wolf, M. L  ■ Wolfs, K  
■ Wright, L. G

MCLEOD WHEEL OF FRIENDS MEMBERS
■ Allen, R & H  ■ Andersson, J  ■ Baker, P  ■ Bakker, J  
■ Bali, A  ■ Baltins, P  ■ Barratt, H  ■ Barton, C  
■ Bennett, W  ■ Beverley, A  ■ Black, S  ■ Bower, M  
■ Briggs, J  ■ Brown, H L  ■ Bryant, M  ■ Byrne, A W  
■ Cameron, J  ■ Cane, E  ■ Choi, G  ■ Coleman, E J  
■ Comerford, J  ■ Comino, G & R  ■ Conn, H  
■ Cowan, J & R  ■ Daley, T  ■ Davenport, J  ■ Davidson, M
■ Dolamore, B  ■ Donohue, A  ■ Doutreband, A  
■ Ellice-Flint, R  ■ Elliott, J  ■ Ellis, G & J  ■ Etherington, P  
■ Evans, P J  ■ Fabiani, G  ■ Fielding, S  ■ Forbes, A  
■ Galloway, P  ■ Gardiner, I  ■ Glasser, N & N  
■ Glasson, C  ■ Goh, Mary  ■ Gould, S  ■ Grigg, D & O
■ Hardwick, C  ■ Haynes, D  ■ Hobson, B  ■ Hockey, K  
■ Hook, E  ■ Howell, A  ■ Joannou, D  ■ Karnowski, R  
■ Kelly, P J  ■ Kerdijk Nicholson, A  ■ Keyvar, P  
■ London, I  ■ Lynch, A  ■ Lynch, A  ■ Maatouk, P  
■ Maurel, M T  ■ McMorrine, O  ■ Mills, M  ■ Mitchell, M
■ Moraitis, N  ■ Mullinger, R  ■ O'Neil, M  ■ Owen, E L  
■ Parmeter, A  ■ Parsonage, R & S  ■ Peoples, M  
■ Pontey, B  ■ Potgieter, C  ■ Pumpa, L  ■ Quinn, K  
■ Ralph, T  ■ Romney, D  ■ Ryan, E A  ■ Sekulich, D  
■ Sergi, P  ■ Seyfi, H  ■ Shield, K  ■ Sollars, D  
■ Solomon, C  ■ Stewart, M  ■ Sullivan, R  ■ Surjadinata, L  
■ Swasbrick, F  ■ Thompson, F  ■ Thomson, P  
■ Thornton, S & M  ■ Tidex, A  ■ Tolliday, S  ■ Torpy, E  
■ Towell, T  ■ Truman, E M  ■ Tsolakis, V  ■ Uphill, G  
■ Whitton, D  ■ Wilkins, V A  ■ Wilkins, P  ■ Williamson, B  
■ Willoughby, A  ■ Wilson, J  ■ Wise, J  ■ Wright, R & J  
■ Zink, G F    
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VOLUNTEERS - INDIVIDUALS
■ Adams, Kate  ■ Aislabie, Kirk  ■ Alexander, Allan  
■ Anderiesen, Donna  ■ Aplin, Carolyn  ■ Aplin, Graeme  
■ Ascott-Evans, Cara  ■ Bailey, Robyn  ■ Baker, Craig  
■ Baker, Graham  ■ Bargwanna, Melinda  ■ Barry, Glenn  
■ Beagle, Kay & John  ■ Bice, Brendon  ■ Bone, Patricia  
■ Brassil, Cecilia  ■ Bridges, Stuart  ■ Brown, Agnes  
■ Brown, Paula  ■ Campbell, Tim  ■ Cartwright, Fiona  
■ Clair, Noel  ■ Clarke, Samantha  ■ Colla, Suzanna  
■ Collins, Luke  ■ Cook, Joanna  ■ Cook, Philip  ■ Cottle,
Margaret  ■ Cummins, Michael  ■ Cummins, Robert  
■ Davidson, Kay  ■ Davis, Patricia  ■ Dives, Jim  ■ Dives,
Trish  ■ Dryden, Phil  ■ Dunn, John  ■ Edwards, Desiree  
■ Ellis, Grahame  ■ Faulkner, Rick  ■ Ferguson, Geoff  
■ Ferguson, Patricia  ■ Fitzpatrick, Lesley  ■ Forsyth, Jane  
■ Fuller, Louise  ■ Fullick, Sue  ■ Gallard, Angela  
■ Garman, Sally  ■ Gerrard, Judith  ■ Gerrard, Mary  
■ Goldman, Milly  ■ Gordon, John  ■ Graham, Alexander  
■ Grant, Joan  ■ Grant, Scott  ■ Greer, Judy  ■ Grinston,
David  ■ Gross, Tania  ■ Guddaye, Maheswaree  ■ Guion,
Justin  ■ Habasny, Kristinna  ■ Halls, Brady  ■ Handsaker,
Paul  ■ Harrison, Margaret  ■ Hawkins, Noela  ■ Heaton, Jo  
■ Henderson, David  ■ Henwood, Johanna  
■ Hetherington, Ashleigh  ■ Hicks, Suzanne  ■ Hill, Barry  
■ Hinchliffe, Elizabeth  ■ Hinderager, Louise  ■ Hofler, J.
Alice  ■ Holmes, David  ■ Humphreys, Louise  ■ Hunt, Kay  
■ Hunt, Roger  ■ Hunter, Patricia  ■ Ingram, Betty  
■ Irwin, Monica  ■ Jagger, Ann  ■ Jagger, Caroline  
■ Johnson, Patricia-Jane  ■ Jones, Allan  ■ Joseph, Brett  
■ Kaiser, Vicki  ■ Kaminski, Zen  ■ Keyvar, Catherine  
■ Kiem-Eather, Patricia  ■ Knowles, Lynda  ■ Kollen, Herman
■ Kristensen, Paul  ■ Lake, John  ■ Lake, Pamela  
■ Latty, Joan  ■ Le Pelley, Lynsey-Jane  ■ Lee, Wesley  
■ Low, David  ■ Maher, Bob  ■ Malone, Tanya  
■ Mason, Adrienne  ■ Matto, David  ■ Mauceri, Robert  
■ Mauoch, Khokha  ■ McAdam, Joanna  
■ McCausland, John  ■ McCulloch, Noelene  
■ McKinnon, Allan  ■ McLellan, Marion  
■ McMahon, Debbie  ■ McMahon, Kelly  ■ Merhi, Sandra
■ Merlino, Cheryl  ■ Morgan, Barbara  ■ Morgan, Cheryl  
■ Morgan, Rhonda  ■ Morschell, David  ■ Muddle, Denis  
■ Murphy, Elaine  ■ New, Adam  ■ Novak, Paul  
■ O'Brien, Karen  ■ O'Neile, Glen  ■ Oregovic, Olivera  
■ Palmer, Jennifer  ■ Parent, Johanne  ■ Parkes, Winifred  
■ Parry, Larry  ■ Pattison, Dannielle  ■ Pearce, Clarissa  
■ Pearson, Luke  ■ Perez, Camila  ■ Peters, Douglas  
■ Peterson, Bruce  ■ Pham, Danielle  ■ Pham, Phuong  
■ Phillips, Paul  ■ Pokorski, Andrew  ■ Porter, Janet  
■ Ranft, Stephen  ■ Rao, Angela  ■ Ribbons, Julie  
■ Robinson, Karen  ■ Rothery, Sophie  ■ Schofield, Sharon
■ Schulte, Stephanie  ■ Scott, Jay  ■ Sedmak, Gemma  
■ Sedmak, Stacey  ■ Sherry, Jade  ■ Silva, Nicola  
■ Simon, Stephen  ■ Simpson, Danielle  ■ Simpson, Maree
■ Slattery, Adam  ■ Slaytor, Petrina  ■ Smith, Benjamin  
■ Smith, Heather  ■ Smith, Rose  ■ Soares-Saboureau,
Francoise  ■ Solomon, Marcus  ■ Sonsalla, Carmel (Serene)
■ Spresser, John  ■ Stark, Michael  ■ Steggles, Glen  
■ Steinhardt, Rebecca  ■ Stewart, Maggi  
■ Stoimenoff, Elwyn  ■ Stuart, Jill  ■ Stuart, Julie  
■ Taffel, Susan  ■ Thirkell, Natalie  ■ Thoroughgood, Michael
■ Tolley, Kirra  ■ Unthank, Matthew  ■ Vale, Rosalie  
■ Vincent, Kathryn  ■ Walker, Loren  ■ Walters, Julie  
■ Ward, Amelia  ■ Wark, Robert  ■ Watson, Victoria  
■ Watters, Kelly  ■ Welsh, Charmaine  ■ Westbury, William
■ Wilton, Kerrie  ■ Winton, Amanda  ■ Woolley, Robert  
■ Wright, Nicholas  ■ Young, Renelle  ■ Zhang, Yolanda 

VOLUNTEERS - CORPORATES
■ American Express  ■ AMP  ■ Alinta  ■ Baptist Church  
■ Commonwealth Bank  ■ Fairfax Group  ■ GE  ■ ING  
■ KPMG  ■ Lend Lease  ■ Macquarie Bank  ■ NRMA  
■ Optus  ■ PricewaterhouseCoopers  ■ Roche  
■ Wellington Funds Management  ■ Westpac Bank

CONSULTING MEDICAL & ALLIED HEALTH
SPECIALISTS
■ Dr S Balandin  ■ Dr Nadia Badawi  ■ Dr Eve Blair  
■ Dr A Boyden  ■ Prof N Buchanan  ■ Dr A Burgess  
■ Dr A Chan  ■ Ms N Clayton  ■ Dr J Clements  
■ Dr P Clouston  ■ Dr J Colebatch  ■ Dr J Cooney, OAM  
■ Dr J Crawford  ■ Prof A Cusick  ■ Dr S Daymond  
■ Dr S Elliott  ■ Dr B Field  ■ Dr E Furze  ■ Dr J Giannisis
■ Dr J Graham  ■ Dr P Gray  ■ Ms C Herden  
■ Dr P Johnson  ■ Ms M Kaatze – McDonald  ■ Dr M Kedsch
■ Mr S Kerr  ■ Dr M Kiernan  ■ Dr P King  ■ Dr D Kohler
■ Dr Ben Marazeki  ■ Dr Bernice Mathison  
■ Dr E McCuddin  ■ Dr B Mooy  ■ Dr P Mouser  
■ Dr M Nash  ■ Dr R Pattinson  ■ Dr J Percy  ■ Dr J Powell
■ Dr Ingrid Rieger  ■ Dr E Rosen  ■ Dr A Scheinberg  
■ Dr M Schokman  ■ Dr M Stening  ■ Dr H Somerville  
■ Dr C Telford  ■ Dr R Ticehurst  ■ Dr M Tonkin  
■ Dr C. Underhill  ■ Dr R Watson  ■ Dr D Wearne  
■ Dr P Wurth

HONORARY LIFE MEMBERS
■ Mrs May Cameron  ■ Dr John Cooney OAM  
■ Mr Col Crawford OAM  ■ Dr Reni Dewey  
■ The Hon John Dowd AO, QC  ■ Mr Rob Ferguson  
■ Mrs Gwen Goodman  ■ Mrs Sirenne Gould OAM  
■ Mr David Holmes  ■ Mr Graham Huxley AM  
■ Ms Lindy Kerr  ■ Dr Margaret Llewelyn  
■ Dr Keith McLachlan  ■ Mr Nicholas Moraitis AM  
■ Mrs Sandra Parsonage AM  ■ Mr Leslie Paterson  
■ Mr Pat Sergi OAM  ■ Mr Paul Simons AM  
■ Dr Don Trousdale  ■ Mr Ray Willing
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